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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Popular Life Insurance Company Limited

Company Name
Year of Establishment
Date of Incorporation

Registered Office

Authorized Capital

Paid up Capital
Nature of Business

Actuarial Consultant

Auditors

Re-Insurer

Bankers
O Agrani Bank Lid. © Dhaka Bank Lid. © Al-Aratah Islami Bank Lid. © Bangladesh Krishi Bank
O Islami Bank Bangladesh Ltd. © Exim Bank Ltd. © Pubali Bank Ltd. © Jamuna Bank Lid.

2 Janata Bank Lid. © The City Bank Lid. © Rupali Bank Ltd. O First Security Islami Bank Lid.

O Social Islami Bank Ltd. © Shahjalal Islami Bank Ltd. © South East Bank Ltd.

2000
26" September, 2000

Peoples Insurance Bhaban
36 Dilkusha C/A (16*" & 17" Floor)
Dhaka-1000.

Tk.500 Crores

Tk.60.43 Crore
Life Insurance Business

Afsar Uddin Ahmed, M.Sc.

Actuary from Institute of Actuaries, London

FCA (Fellow of the C.C. Actuaries, USA), Diploma of Superannuation
Management (Macquarie Uni, Aust) Dipl.in Risk Management
Consulting Actuary

8 Duntroon Avenue, Epping NSW Australia 2121

G. Kibria & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Sadharan Bima Sadan (5th Floor)
24-25 Dilkusha C/A, Dhaka-1000

Barents Reinsurance SA
6, Rue Du Fort Bourbon, L-1249 Luxembourg

SCOR Global Life Se, Singapore Branch
160 Robinson Road, #31-01 5BF Centre, SIngapore 068914
Tel.:+65 6517 7500, Fax.: +65 6517 7599, E-mail: ewong@scor.com
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Advizer i BEM Muzammel
DRGANISING § ARY (Ex-M.P)
Bangladesh Awami League
Central Executive Commities

Sr. Consultant i Md. Anis Uddin Miah
Rtd. Joint Secretary
Govt. of the People's Republic of Bangladesh
Abdul Awal Hawlader

Rtd. Additional Secretary
Govt. of the People's Republic of Bangladesh

P Control

Controller of Insurance &

Chief Controller of Insurance (Incharge)
Govt. of the People's Republic of Bangladesh.

Mr. Md. Sajedul Karim

Rtd. Senior District & Sessions Judge
Bangladesh Judicial Service

Govt. of the People's Republic of Bangladesh.

Legal Advisers i Mohammad Ali
B.A (Hon's), MA LLB
Advocate, Supreme Court of Bangladesh
Additional Attorney General & Prosecutor
International Crimes Tribunal (B0)

Md. Aslam Miah
M.ALLB
Advocate, Supreme Court of Bangladesh

Kala Chand Saha

B.S5 (Hon's), LLB

Advocate, Supreme Court of Bangladesh
Judge Court, Patuakhali

Faujia Yesmin

Bﬁ.uﬁﬂ

Assistant Public Prosecutor
Dhaka Judge Court

K.M Rezaul Firoj

LLB (Hon's) LLM
Advocate, Supreme Court of Bangladesh
Mohammad Shajahan Howlader
M.ALLE

Dhaka ludge Court

AK.M Shamsul Hague
M55, LLB
Advocate, Supreme Court of Bangladesh
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26.09.2000
26.09.2000
01.11.2000
01.11.2000
25.10.2001
2002

23.05.2002
16.07.2003
16.07.2003
25.01.2004
27.01.2004
01.03.2004
28.03.2005
29.03.2005
24.04.2005
28.04.2005
02.06.2005
10.07.2005
10.07.2005
12.07.2005
12.07.2005
2005

07.05.2007
19.09.2007
2007

06.08.2008
28.08.2008
01.10.2008
25.06.2009
12.07.2009
24.06.2010
19.10.2010
10.12.2015

w==FHE PROFILE

Incorporation of the Company

Commencement of business

Signing of First Insurance Policy

Launching of Janapriya Bima (Micro Insurance)

Launching of Islami Bima (Takaful)

First Declaration of Bonus to Policyholders

Launching of Al-Amin Bima

Launching of Islami DPS

Launching of Popular DPS

Launching of Al Baraka Islami Ekok Bima

First Declaration of Cash Dividend of 5% on share of Tk. 100 each
Launching of Al Baraka Islami DPS

Received consent from SEC for issuance of public share of 45 million
Publication of IPO prospectus

IPO Subscription opened

IPO Subscription closed

Lottary for allotment of shares

Listing with Dhaka Stock Exchange

Listing with Chittagong Stock Exchange

First trading at Dhaka Stock Exchange

First trading at Chittagong Stock Exchange

First Declaration of Bonus to Microinsurance Policyholders
Purchase of DSE Membership

First Credit Rating

Payment of 1st maturity claim

Purchase of CSE Membership

Issuance of First Bonus Shares

Launching of Al-Amin Ekok Bima

Receipt of Registration Certificate as Stock Dealer and Stock Broker of DSE
Receipt of Registration Certificate as Stock Dealer and Stock Broker of CSE

Launching of Popular Life Brokarage House
Launching of Popular Life 1st Mutual Fund
Launching of UFS-Popular Life Unit Fund
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OUR VISION

To build Popular Life Insurance
Company Limited a truly popular and
trusted insurer with pro-insuree
governance structure and empathytic
actions.

OUR MISSION

To be the best Life Insurance in
Bangladesh in terms of efficiency, service
quality, claims settlement, trust
worthiness and profitability with strong
liquidity.




Popular Life Insurance Company Limited

TRANSMITTAL LETTER

To

All Shareholders

Insurance Development and Regulatory Authority
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission
Registrar of Joint Stock Companies & Firms

Dhaka Stock Exchange Ltd.

Chittagong Stock Exchange Ltd.

Central Depository Bangladesh Ltd. (CDBL)

Sub: Annual Report for the year ended December 31,2018.

Dear Sir,

We are pleased to enclose a copy of the Annual Report of Popular Life
Insurance Company Limited together with the Audited Accounts & Financial
Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018 for your record/necessary
action.

Sincerely Yours,

sd/-

Mostofa Helal Kabir
Company Secretary

Annual Report 2018 - Papular Lile insurance Company Limiied 10



Popular Life Insurance Company Limited
Registered Office: Peoples Insurance Bhaban
36 Dilkusha C/A (17th floor), Dhaka-1000.

NOTICE OF THE 19TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 1g9th Annual General Meeting of Popular Life Insurance
Company Limited will be held on Monday, July 15, 2019 at 12:00 p.m. at Hotel Purbani
International Ltd. 1, Dilkusha C/A, Dhaka-1000, to transact the following business:

Agenda

01. To receive, consider and adopt the Directors' and Auditor's Report and Audited Accounts
of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2018.

02. To declare Dividend for the year 2018 as recommended by the Board of Directors.

03. To elect Directors as per the Articles of Association of the Company.

04. To approve the Appointment of Independent Director.

05. To appoint Auditors for the year 2019 and to fix their remuneration.

06. To appoint Complience Auditors for the year 2019 and to fix their remuneration.

07. To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair.

By Order of the Board of Directors,
sd/-

Date: 29 May, 2019 Mostofa Helal Kabir
Company Secretary

Notes:

1) The record date will fix on June 12, 2019. Shareholders whose name will appear in the Register
of Members on the Record Date will be eligible to attend the meeting and qualify for Dividend.

2) A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting may appoint a
proxy (such proxy will be a member of the Company) to attend and vote on hisfher behalf. The
Proxy Form duly stamped must be deposited at the Head Office of the Company not later than
48 hours before the time fixed for the Meeting.

3) Admission to the Meeting room will be allowed on production of the attendance slip duly
signed by the Shareholder/Proxy/Attorney/ Representatives as the case may be.

4) Members may also please note that no gift/ food/ benefit in cash or in kind
will be arranged at the AGM as per BSEC Directives.

Annuz! Riaport 2018 Popular Lifi Insurance Compary Limited - 11
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mir. Hasan Ahmed Chatrrnan

Mr. Md, Motaher Hussain Viee-Chairman

Mr. M Fazle Taher sponsor rector

Mr. Shamsul Arefin Khaled Sponsor Director

Mrs. Nur Jahan Ahmed Sponsor Director

Mr. Kabir Ahmed Sponsor Director

Mrs. Farjana Jahan Ahmed Sponsor Dinector

Mr. Mohammed Amir Hossain Chavdhury Public Shareholder Director
Mr. Mohammed Zahirul Islam Chowdhury Public Shareholder Director
Mr. Md. Khaled Mosharef Independent Director

Mr. Molla Golam Mohammad Independent Director

Mr. Mohammed Abuw Kauchar Independent Dinector

Mr. B M Yousuf Al Managing Director & CEO
Mr. Mostofa Helal Kabir Company Secretary
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Hasan Ahmed
Chairman

T
T

i

Md. Motaher Hussain
Vice-Chairman

M Fazle Taher
Sponsor Director

Anrual Repor 2018

Directors' relationship in other companies

Chairman
Popular Equities Ltd. (Member DSE)

Managing Director

Tejgaon Engineering & Construction Co. Ltd.
Popular Jute Exchange Ltd.

Popular Food & Allied Industries Co. Ltd.
Popular Jute Mills Ltd.

Comilla Food & Allied Industries Ltd.
Director

Peoples Insurance Co. Ltd.

Peoples Equities Ltd. (Member DSE)

Managing Director
Winne Electro Trade Ltd.

Proprietor
Dye-tex International

Founder
Ambia-Younus Foundation (AYF)

Managing Director
Infrablue Technology Ltd.
Director

Fortuna Fried Chicken Ltd.
Fortuna Leather Craft Ltd.
Rupashi Garments Ltd.

Fapular Lile Insumancs ::Z"':Z.-.":r nifed 14



BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Directors' relationship in other companies

Director

Nourish Poultry & Hatchery Ltd.
Moonlight Garments Ltd.

Ehsan Garments Ltd.

Nourish Agro Ltd.

Nourish Grand Parents Ltd.
Nourish Feeds Ltd.
Mohammadi Navigations Ltd.
Khaled Shipping Lines Ltd.
Telnet Communication Ltd.
Ehsan Packaging & Printing Industries Ltd.
Artisan Enterprise Ltd.

Nourish Fisheries Ltd.

Shamsul Arefin Khaled
Sponsor Director

Director
Comilla Food & Allied Industries Ltd

Nur Jahan Ahmed
Sponsor Director

Managing Director
Peoples Equities Ltd. (Member DSE)

Director

Tejgaon Engineering & Construction Co. Ltd.
Popular Food & Allied Industries Co. Ltd.
Popular Jute Exchange Ltd.

Comilla Food and Allied Industries Ltd.
Popular Jute Mills Ltd.

Popular Equities Ltd. (Member DSE)

Peoples Insurance Co. Ltd.

Kabir Ahmed
Sponsor Director

Anrwal Report 2018 | Popular Life Insurance Company Limiled | 15



BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Farjana Jahan Ahmed
Sponsor Director

Mohammed Amir Hossain Chowdhury
Public Shareholder Director

Directors' relationship in other companies

Director

Comilla Food & Allied Industries Ltd.
Peoples Insurance Company Limited

Managing Director

PHP NOF Continuous Galvanizing Mills Ltd
PHP Agro Product Ltd

Dina Cold Storage Limited

Director

PHP Corporation Ltd

PHP Cold Rolling Mills Ltd.

PHP Spinning Mills Limited

PHP Cotton Mills Limited

PHP Rotor Spinning Mills Limited

PHP Latex & Rubber Products Ltd

PHP Overseas Ltd

PHP Continuous Galvanizing Mills Ltd
PHP Ship Breaking & Recycling Industries Ltd
PHP Fisheries Ltd

PHP Stocks & Securities Ltd

PHP Petro Refinery Limited

Pelicon Properties Limited

PHP Power Generation Plant Ltd

Bay Terminal & Distribution Company Ltd
PHP Float Glass Industries Ltd
Information Science & Technology Solution Ltd
PHP Power Company Ltd.

PHP Ispat Limited

PHP Denim Limited

PHP Automobiles Limited

Anrual "H|l.:l'. 9018 | Popular Life Insurance Company Limiec



BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mohammed Zahirul Islam Chowdhury
Public Shareholder Director

Directors' relationship in other companies

Managing Director

PHP Spinning Mills Limited

PHP Ispat Limited

PHP Cotton Mills Limited

PHP Rotor Spinning Mills Limited
Director

PHP Corporation Ltd

PHP Cold Rolling Mills Ltd.

PHP Latex & Rubber Products Ltd

PHP Overseas Ltd

PHP Continuous Galvanizing Mills Ltd

PHP Ship Breaking & Recycling Industries Ltd
PHP Fisheries Ltd

PHP Stocks & Securities Ltd

PHP Petro Refinery Limited

Pelicon Properties Limited

PHP Power Generation Plant Ltd

Bﬁy Terminal & Distribution Company Ltd
PHP NOF Continuous Galvanizing Mills Ltd
PHP Float Glass Industries Ltd

Information Science & Technology Solution Ltd
PHP Power Company Ltd.

PHP Agro Product Ltd

Dina Cold Storage Limited

PHP Denim Limited

PHP Automobiles Limited

Md. Khaled Mosharef
Independent Director

Maolla Golam Mohammad Mohammed Abu Kauchar
Independent Director Independent Director

Annual Repart 2018 | Poputar Lite nsurance Company Limited | 17



MEMBERS OF AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Md. Khaled Mosharef Hossain

Mr. Hasan Ahmed

Mr. Md. Motaher Hussain

Mr. Shamsul Arefin Khaled

Mr. Kabir Ahmed

Mr. Mohammed Amir Hossain Chowdhury
Mr. Mohammed Zahirul Islam Chowdhury

H

Member

Mr. Mostofa Helal Kabir, Company Secretary acted as the

Secretary to the Committee
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MEMBERS OF CLAIM COMMITTEE

Mr. Md, Motaher Hussain

Mr. Hasan Ahmed

Mr. Shamsul Arefin Khaled

Mr. Kabir Ahmed

Mr. Mohammed Amir Hossain Chowdhury
Mr. Mohammed Zahirul Islam Chowdhury
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MEMBERS OF REAL ESTATE COMMITTEE

Engr. M. ATaher

Mr. Hasan Ahmed

Mr. Shamsul Arefin Khaled

Mr. Kabir Ahmed

Mr. Mohammed Amir Hossain Chowdhury
Mr. Mohammed Zahirul Islam Chowdhury
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Chairman
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member

MEMBERS OF INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

Mr. Mohammed Zahirul Islam Chowdhury
Mr. Hasan Ahmed

Engr. M. A Taher

Mr. Kabir Ahmed

Mr. Mohammed Amir Hossain Chowdhury
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Chairman
Member
Member
Member
Member
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NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Molla Golam Mohammad
Mr.Hasan Ahmed
Mr. Md. Motaher Hussain

Chairman
Member
Member

Mr. Mostofa Helal Kabir, Company Secretary acted as the

Secretary to the Committee
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SHARIAH COUNCIL

0 Principal Syed Kamaluddin Jafree
Chairman, Central Shariah Council for Islamic Insurance of Bangladesh
Adviser, ATN Bangla
Islamic Scholar
Secretary General, Bangladesh Islamic University
Principal, Jamiya Kasemnia Kamil Madrasha, Narsingdi
Chairman

0 Mufti Maulana Mizanur Rahman
Senior Pesh Imam, Baitul Mukarrak National Mosque
Member

0 Hazrat Mowlana Kabi Ruhul Amin Khan
Executive Editor, The Daily Ingilab
Member

0 Prof.Mowlana A B M Masum Billah
Secretary General
Central Shariah Council for Islamic Insurance of Bangladesh
Member

O Alhaj Hafez Mowlana Mofizur Rahman
Chairman, Darusshunnah Complex, Mirpur, Dhaka
Member

0 Prof.Mawlana Abu Noman Md, Rafiqur Rahman
Chairman, Islamic Studies Department, Bangladesh Islamic University, Dhaka
Member

0 Prof. Mahbubur Rahman
Member

0 Hazrat Mowlana Arif Billah Siddiquee
Islamic Scholar & Pir-5haheb Sarsina Darbar Sharif (Choto Hujor)
Member

O Hazrat Mowlana Mostofa Amin Khan
Member

0 Hasan Ahmed
Chairman, Popular Life Insurance Co. Ltd.
Member

O BM Yousuf Ali
Managing Director & CEQ
Popular Life Insurance Co.Ltd.
Member

o B M Showkat Ali
Additional Managing Director
Popular Life Insurance Co. Ltd.
Member

O Hazrat Mowlana Q.M. Abdus Sobhan
Central President, Jamiatul Moffasserin Bangladesh &
Muffassir-E-Quran, ATN Bangla
Member Secretary

O Mostofa Helal Kabir
Company Secretary
Popular Life Insurance Co.Ltd.
Observer Member

Annual Report 2017 Popular Life Insurance Company Limited 20



Managing Director & CEO
B M Yousuf Ali

Additional Managing Director
BM Showkat Ali

Additional Managing Director & CFO
Kazi Md. Fazlul Karim, FCA,FCS

Senior Deputy Managing Director (Head of I/A)
Mandan Bhattacharjee

Senior Deputy Managing Director &
Company Secretary
Mostofa Helal Kabir

Deputy Managing Directors
Sayed Motahar Hossaln

Md. Nawsher Ali Nayem
Md.Habibur Rahman

Md. Abu Taher

Feroz Htakher

Emad Uddin Ahmed Prince
Alamger Feroj

Md. Bashirul Islam

Senior Executive Director
AFM Mahmudur Rahman

Syed Sultan Mahmud
Md. Kamal Hossain
Mohammed Khalilur Rahman Shikder

Executive Directors &
Project Directors

Md. Shafiqul Islam

Md. Jahangir Hossain

Md. Salim Miah

Md. Abul Kalam Azad

Md. Sazzad Mahmud Kishore
Mohammad Anamul Haque
B M Shahjahan

Sayed Aminul Islarm

Md. Billal

Executive Directors
Abu Moyed Shaheen
Md. Hasan Jamil

Md. Shahedul Alam

Md. Mamun Al Faruque
Md. Anwar Hossain

Senior General Managers
Muhammad Farid Uddin

Mufti Mahammad Didarul Islam
Md. Muklesur Rahman

Md. Zillur Rahman

Md. Sumon Akan

Syed Syful Islam Rubel

Md. Abul Hasem Mollah

Md. Mahabubur Rahman
Jahedul Alam Shameem

Soyeb Ahammad

Abdur Razzak

Solaiman

Md. Jlahangir Alam

Arvusl Popo 2010 Propuder LS insoraree Corrcary Limitst 21



Senior General Managers
(Contract Basis)

Giasuddin Ahmed Sikder
Muhammad Sekander Ali Shaikh
Md. Atiqur Rahman

Abdul Quder Akon

Md. Jelait Hossain Molla

Md. Abul Khayer

General Managers

Md. Sharif Hasnat

Md. Altaf Hossain Sayail
Priyotosh Kumar Dev

Md. Elius Khan

Md. Jahangir Hossain
Mohammad Shafiqur Rahman
Mahabub Rahman

Md. Ayub Ali Sikder
Moniruzzaman

General Managers
(Contract Basis)

Mohammad Qudrat Ali

Rl Fepoe AN

Py

General Managers
Md. Muruzzaman Kotwal
Md. Samsuzzaman

Md. Firoz Jarman Uzzal

Md. Habibur Rahman Khan
Mohammed Azizul Hogue
Sayed Md. Ataur Rahman
Mohammed Tanvir Al-Azad
Mohammad Kamruzzaman
Md. Sakil Mahmud

Md. Abdul Alim

Rangit Kumar Ghash

Mr. Siddikur Rahman
Masud Rana

Md. Dulal Miah
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EVENTS & HIGHLIGHTS
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EVENTS & HIGHLIGHTS

NT 0%,00.30308 TRY AR wEF TEEm G WG 97 S
GUEEE YRS Wi a2 W gEyeie AEsEe Agme of aaoe BEds
I EEE A aaEe FEe sefine Grgme wee wes o | o
HFTR TS T oeEEd NN TR R yE R o
TR RETE wuiT e e e i awe BETE a7 aegem
(5 TR W S A T P e e W e e
wfase o e a3 TeoT TEE RE ERet B am Siw wd
aFn Hiv e favm crien Sl aegem JEers 7 ag wews w6,
Hives wffe w5y g crentl Bim Gt weme st gewi, Hee
I H5 @ @la iR SR ane wife B R, SEe e e e
E A FAE T eI (A s S, A ey A
(Zre) & TR G ST W oEe, JEfEaaE e e e
o e 3, fegnfe DR orenR oW, of Rerr WA AR, o
TE A, e WY w0, W S S e Seafi e 9
CRIe{iAirE W S T |

emerging

ASIA

II'!SI..IH‘JI'ICE

ME 38,06, 3035% T W GwE W TR (ICC) 2 wHATy wiEEmeE
s W Emerging ASIA Insurance Award-2019 eWW o= =W |
AT B S WA G g (EPeerts i e S
FUEE G AeEE AEE e o Bl ¢ Emerging ASIA
Insurance Award-2018 &% F91 70 | G wiakE T AR &
4% WeFT W @R ATE BT afenis sdrd 3T | o W Bl
feem corwiiRe et arageint MR B B e e

=1 Brwe o P e e AT AR A F A Er e
BERT «n o Boame @i o wwen wdw afeony Fams T
sfedre o Bl wled AR 20 W @0E @feE g 99
SR B SHEE T7 | Wi ey She e ey fwm e
AR e wE w4 | I Bgwe e e s ewme o =i
T AMEEE < Feeiery wab Rem R e of e i
efeit e it A o were TEem, Temme I
aAIETRE HATeT o 3RE aEw, e wEemee I eee
RT3 e wfad i o canee A R, A S R
elFTES «ae AefEE TEE S Al FRhE g7 e e o
Fife & «n To0w W | WEBE WIS T5A A i B o R v
AT g B A | awste Sefi i S i e e s W e
Fraf® o, e M on R Sepew i T
FFEE |

st I B 0 Famd s (witfiemmag) g o Twie offs
sk Feme s i wEE 5 i @ 2ot @F FOHa
R S whE fam wiam F wiEeE s e W e, SR
i | Frm Bave o Pt weETre wEm ot = e B«
wefErg wWebe e W e T omE AeeE e wRflEee ge
TR T bR W, WREEEEa 0% A T, 49 AMREE G, e
“fEwE B oY T ceew $Ee, S oo W sfEte e e
e ST o el awe seEy WiETE TAyeE A .
e [ o STos ot oy | R S TE] T Jry oo Ffafla e
w67 @ wEfEwma o7 FRE Hfvws e o | S SR o T
cor weeere o ofinr Al e W w | Sl oo
ALK A FES R O v e S ¥ 5 ) wN0s AR oue
o G F R iR TEEeE o e e 1 un iuw et
eiua =T ST A oAl W

Annual Feperl 2018 | Popular Life Ingurance Company Limiled | 28



EVENTS & HIGHLIGHTS

ME 25,0t 203T TR oER WEF TRHIEA e W T wite
T T 1Y YT NG SOTE WS [ G wew o e
308t TOR0E T IR 0% SIS e, (TR e e ST
o wE | WA e wTEl feree temond e wfER i e
S B WA | TN GRS R O werieny
wie Farem sl fizem o Sepem eEmeE ERTEE aT S
ET TR G B an wegem R s BEe R oan ¥Ew
wH | Wb WEe T A @ SieEe e s R
o WEFE WH, FES g AT e @i e st s
wiEEE WeTHl, WeEE YA A & el e et cae wife
Bl Tijemt, wices ouw T Frems (B9616) @ TEie Bivee sweETs 9
T EE | B gy S T o s |

P oo
| "
R _

be THTR T
i L e

: “"H"T"‘-‘alvshﬁ

-,

5 2¢,08,2030%: TEY AR wET T @rE FEGT 97 S
e BEE TSI FEAEE W 59 @ T ACH-3osh SR
et Hel 8 eyl wgbe ol B e W w@ ) W gy
wfely fegew S T o P sdirsg omia carmE o e e
AETAT | TEE TAEeE AR @ Fe a7 e ST GrET
eFET 7 Oy ¥eae W werfig B e Rew wieR fiew S
g o Rarme o srafe e g i oA, R e (afefs
=) B, o W @EIEN IR e (9 W) «ffm wEmw, i (-
FGT) W WO (R T T | SIS W W e
wftfie arrgeE AR B gy tews 9l | B whie wme Bfie Rew
e T SeER TR | WA a1 8w e wer

|

5 o400, 20388 TiETY 0Tt TEgeEm v (Rentae) a7 ot ae
e wEE e e wrd FeE TeerE WiEe wE e Aghes wgie
TR =y fermmm Halmel aemort (EfREER) femmwem =i =
i s el R T A S S e S g T
R cote Wi T e | wei B e minen
E A T S e it g7 T e o Fle B
o FEw W ey T waeie o wief s e S
aEFmeEEE et o R aoee, T Ba e Fared sdeEres e
AT G B W 6 (IR B SR S | CFRTE WA T T
wifim egewe wwe Sefis famw oM TEEE oFEN o SiEe
HFTES wREE G s o crnrs S, TR CTEel CEIEe (N
wEEE e fm, A ot W o W AR, e
CATTRGTA Calte CHTe A CEJT, WS CTTIRGT N S CETT e TR
e g a3 ifER T et Safes s

L R I I T | R —— i
ey i B e SN

8 of,09, 20368 BIRY wEE WEF TR e Bde o S
AR FURRER efeEy el St T s e Ads
e e W wrem TMERES wfedfamy, wew wie W
R Ay Wl e wife wm s wSn e B o
RIS T 4 | CRTE g e o e w3 e T
cwE et ) ox Ty Wil werferg B wabis faree sl
sl T e A6 g Py wen, TR 6 T wEem wfEfe
e Gl WS e, TenT R wEvems wivEs (g AT P
it g, TP W, RIS waw ST e AR e | e
wie Beifge fipew s wfefe ammes #fees & ax rews w9 W
i T vt wfrdigs | wfire gy wfefice Tome wwym o
HTHE |

Annual Report 2018 | Popular Lifs Ingurance Company Limited | 27



EVENTS & HIGHLIGHTS

g o ﬂ"‘, 3%
._ ‘ y

| | {
] .|II |||.I| ,||I|
wfifes fovm W e T8 699 EE TTE AT cEETET 9
JfEpfE femirs 9 ‘gEm” @ TiET Taewer wot EmE wvEE
WEF TR @ AEEE v0,00,000/= TR WEAW 29 WE | AR
witE B e Pl an wegem ofiveE o BEs o e
T PRI TS ) an YEE W e i e A
wiitrer o FEs ST (5 T S |

S WO osbEr wify ey wmiEw Eegre arend BEGE o2
AhreeE Ao eaaiEte e oWl Tids ey qeg
<7 ST BUAICY Popular Life Insurance Cup Golf Tourmameant-3e3y @2
we B Tt = | B wepie aue Wil Gew fe i vy s e
G A TS GIOR (WA (Nlp WEYR WEW, J%EE, <ufEERr
Tram | frm wiEl fiEm Ao9mE MiF e e EEge ue
T AT e FRe am e T crmE et 3 e
B Wit | wiwe Tefie fipmm Bhoet R omaume Soifiana cowican
TR TR EE TR WA Beifm crnme 3, R SR o
TFGTTe SR ATRAY TR WA A, GEATEaE ST BW
W, Y HUAT © (IR T a9 Bty e 7w | R
e afef orem e cils WEDE we s fro wfel weEE =g
I A FEE OF TR AR ¢ Bile [ ow Yuw o &
AT Bl TR0E 7 W |

WS FEom TE 9 T99 SN TR w0E e EEEEee S
i v =fiwfs femfe 5 e @ T s T e
ez wEE By ot B o uiERT & Yo,00,000/= B1ER
TR EWW W | WA e Wi fiem s smifee il faef wm
wiGiEe ufEm =ism crem e et T (S R, aefe, Faeak
erphite) oo e R etopma ol Bmgom il BiEde a9 ey
wfREE o e e T EES o e R e 1 W),
T ¢ @ Sfer e, Wil aftrm e ey Ffie g
Frg & afiey afeds T afeffigs | ofre sum <Rl cem eem
e wemm =i g2 BT ot wET Tegem o Eide an
TE A e ¢ Fike R 97 e wfiE so 7F T 6% TErE FES
T IR |

wozfE A9EE AT TN @A EAE &9 qBUEEe e
IR SR e s TagreETe SHEn sy W ST Gth
Popular Life Insurance Cup Golf Toumnament-2019 <% o8 St 341 &1 |
o o e wiEl fem s o faftarm fae B a aiives gl
TS (T A e T e e, awtef, fast ) R wtei
i oot dw e e ST aw T e e FRe
T, e B e EPiEs R aw TEew wE | wiee Eefie
o s witee =Ew ouw Eofier mwme o e T,
Pt Gk cwmme e e it @ T oew T
e e ans e wm o e REoie o o A
T, T WAE SR W, (1 R oUes S W a9 S
e e TEEgW | BRI ey Wl o mmem S T
=i & Rem wfef o wiEte Iegom e FRde an g
e o Bide [ un Boow ww o TN Brayw ware (e s

Annial Report 2018 | Popular Lie Insuranca Company Limited | 28



EVENTS & HIGHLIGHTS

2 ol.civ doivit wii e e Toamew carend fide o0 =Neewy
sy wlogife wperEoacsy Teow Bw omwpew §w owilfe ool
80946000 TR o e R cR e R W w
e aee wfeld fipm oerea®a Sk B o oewree T e
rer=aliy weyr “fines o filbe oo were TR OV el
fi &1 W woiy wefioy wabe Siomr =SS fioe w8y e
wardt #n oy Tl e wer g o | T Wk wie T To
er=piy wfifew waw e oo Towe Wl oeperde Gl
wEhTe an wEm e G, oS e R U, o e
i wriw, ol veE e o W v axe e fieSipers B
Wil IR YR SETE N WO |

s

=8 o 0403l Wi wey wike Renrem cared Blche 4 00 B
n o T vl m% a8, TR O Tow Sew
Tt u Fpogmn Welome oo (orBFERT) Swerrene soemer e
il wY W gos waR T B SR o Geee e o Tl
- Tl s B R e T
o Tore tepuew ovieen (mReed ft an B oty vy O
wine feom wfe Soma ¥ T o S am et e age i
W | SR e e s careniig aififie wapes foes § e
wgws Wil | wgiem awe B fiow wor afilfrs w8 ey
Silepy wemeeSrd wEEE WY TieeTeT, WS T WhT & (erenty Sy
werEA (5t Wi T e, Wi mwe B e (T o el
S wrEn® w e, Tiasfi e oimeneR apes, o e Wi
=i, o W W, On T T o e S o e e v
afifpers $u etz s wwee e e v |

Arval Ragor X510 | Poputar | s rearaics Comgasy |

genasdle Wit e wl Bewpew ool fefity av wEeenR
oy wionle woues sesy Seerw P ogmoss B owrly el
B ayossou. T o moed Yo oovm aeind  wRGTeo
Twe w0 On ) ke e wfeN fom oo way wisn e v e
am fa ey o= T fis el e Afors o fite a3 Do
Tmrew s cefoel  am Wi el | e wmine firem =Rl i
B e o S eeer sfwee (g ol v wepeee, weel
TEeTed e wars wiid B s | walE T iy e et
wfefre wopss <Soee & o= Sews vl | By woine we Ty e
carerd figuli o gog lnmegn gm parerdie wpma Gefea sdardrm |
ire wfifeyers S ol ooy D S208 90 TTH

w2 2y o8 2cit Wi w=eg e Tonuew oeverd St au pemen
o Wit weEaasye e o oorwm o owlia owd
B, 28,00, 0 % TEH OFs (uape e waie wn TwE T T | e
s wfE fies Bo Bgee o Sewd ayEres Wil wew) oege Blae
WS | (U= TN TeeeEe a e gy wonE e (o
ol T on VEmm wfy reeficy Sw wokio S wfe® Sioew B
e o B wieer S (T 25 TEE W ) RS
L ek o wfiefw T <o g vews ol | e
Ew mgie caren®y fauls o mew afewespw Sefips feorm | wfem
sfgfipure B wil oo e wee oA WO

=yl )



EVENTS & HIGHLIGHTS

T abr,03,203888 SEY TUEE AEE TEN oAl FiE gg Bt
Feny a1 v oF T e WEEn Ae et @b dqnes i oew
wiETHCT weis T | Sl ey wie G i S Sam e o
o e A e bm oW Rew wfel Rowe few wreers
TR AT e File o= T TTTEE R et R oag
iy o | PR SfERET TEEee dErms B a7 Weww =@
wereflrg B wabd wWEe 9% e Bufed ey wfmee cng e
e e W 99 HEenEE, oen JiREEE G ST T 9 (Wi wEEE
A A @R S See sl | gRre wfefigers S wde
THFF TEET FA05 (Y] 08 |

—
o T e q;m ]
ﬂ;”mﬁmmﬁﬁm

wcere 8 sl.wu.ll‘
T Bl 1 ———

ME 00,09, 203588 TR w1 {E Wi TgeEm ceri e« g $m
e BydE FiaiTe T AT WEl G cifiR =TS st
T | AR EYE wiE e e AT A O e o= o
oy el fipem et A =R s Fle g3e o Twgem
CEIEE cHEEs [ aw Tham Wil | e wfelE e e R
% aFE WA FEH60E 05 Wahin Wae TEA A0 A WEHE e
| @rEE Ham T WA e DT, A 5 AR |
et Pfe et am wie B e, e avm §o Fre
(4T @ e e e T e, feewfs e cerEe
EE | e WEER TEEE, v e ofwws § aw mEEm, ewwm
st coerae AT T e wfEw B Fendlt e wfice e wfefice
TEAE A ] 0 |

& 38,0k, 2035 SIEd AR FIF TogEm e MEme g e
e we AT Are-aete Beemw I gt dro owEm T
8,03, 0t 085/ Bieta 5o sFurt corer P gecedl Remeer e
=3 W | R e e fiem S G e R v Bl i
(7o =) «Fm =Ew | e TEEeE o e FEe wm e
B (PRI HPET R an B wilte ey weine fom wiei
Terem ~Fad oo wfifEe Fre o o e TwE, SO b e
et Fgomee EES FUEN T UEE | ST WEe T a0
ERE W g A B o wes weh, faefs e e
TR 8 s TR weE, o AR a9e e wee el
il | eRTe wiEfigere S wde v e TR0 (7] W |

AT yo.oraodbln Sk Ao wiEw TEgee oo Bide aw oemt
EFE WE-AE AEE-aodr SUNCE dw anrew 9 widR
8,805 ros - B o5 cem cam] Fe weiesl e e o
| Wi g wfel o B Sme o Famd wdeires FEE Afisee
(39 wfew) «fFm e ae dyW T fiem e e AfEsee e
Fide am TEmT TEE oFRGE Etes [ g $5EE 9 | S
fores wfel fem Fm 3« Famdt s e «fvee T o T,
e wiEfE g AR ROy sewe W, faafE taw e
@ € Fl YEIE T, S AR O9 G S S
Tl | Wb FErey Ew fGaaE o wetim W A% | ERTs
wfefEgpare T widl ove gamen AT ot WORE |

Anriual Report 2018 | Popular Life Insurance Company Limited | 30



EVENTS & HIGHLIGHTS

NG 33,0k, 2035 TR AR TEF SrgEm @ FEge g7 IREmE
freify wiaffs wromm-20w Toems ot gmrsw Fm e i
9,35, 500/ BITE (5o T SfEDROTT TerE w9 w | WEEA o
wfely firm arerenet TrEwE o 3 gn.f) o aEEeE
s o Fe = FeEoT TEEm R et [ ar 3wl
werfbry T wph frm wfef fiew T Sam o R wgies W
AR (g1 AR < W e AR e 5P Ve | W ER
i B e SR g AEses F un e wff | S
e TH M0 el T I (T e e ST W A, S
AR o i e Teen s | wfive wffeees S
WA T5E TEIEE FE0S (74 W0 |

|

M8 38.09.203F58 BEY AvEE MEF g o B0 o7 sem
Fretiitn o Frrem-gesy g9 3800 o T g I=owdn wh
@,33,38 B/~ TR o TeeE e SRERT @S meme = | wmiE
ey wiEf frm e e wReeE e File g3 e T
crmaE efTes g 3y Wi | T waine R wiEk e feaefy
bam ometg e, Bufen gee wfvee o e oapE wefe, ge
fanEr o e e e amifege T fieg) wghne wme Tw
T LW IS e A W, Whetnw &P wavees o g e
W (T T B T | iy HevEY T aey T
weffire garm cur | wfRre sy wfefes S o e e o s

M 39,09,3000 5 TN R wWET TEW @ BREvE 1 e
(= A FTTEE-20s BUMTE 4,533 B9 9 dmeges v it
8,08 3 by TR 5T HRA AN TEEEE Ol e
T | R Ay ST R e e s e Fie g9y
e B cwRE s g B0 W | s fo s
Torrm Thwsft tmaw rsmR e, 58 ARems e e EeEm T,
ey AfiERTS T wEE EEW e cEieE T fie, e A om
T W ST TR SR S e | e ey I
ey Wb cn wfiegm Ewmm «f | efare gy wfEfite @ wide e
T TS ] W0 |

T 30,0930 3 TEY AvmE WET I o il om wereE
ettty - Frmm-20y B 3 vey v T ot it el ol
30,0t a0y~ TR (5 aEeE) e FEE FEme e siEbiEm
THET T | EE Y wia G e e s e e
W T T e efred & gy 18w i R wlef
fire Teaufe M coreER o, Bl o oREEE ony Sm e
M, e AAEERE T TR @ e cTETrEE T i, el -
AAMENT e TAR W FE T S SeEe ST | S
eteify e sy Tasn oo ol s 99 | wRire engw wfefoe S
wida to T s Tl A0 |

Arnual Report 2018 | Popular L¥e Insurancs Compary Limited | 31



EVENTS & HIGHLIGHTS

ob.olr 3oibr¥t B AR wiEw Tgem @ WfEds g e
cwerly wdaife wrwed-aode Bdere T dtegew @ owde o
8,3¢,54, 8o/~ TR 5% WewE me e «anel femmes e
T T | SR ey wrER e e T e e fiie am
e B et @Bret f ow 1wt | wne Sem wfeR
Tere o wfeRs IRgem wfeee [ gn wewe a9, Tbasfl b
CaTEIER T A ol S TEa, R AR ol I e W,
e sfwm TEAE e e cate AR T, S AR IR A T 8
e w3 e e Befe afediee | e ey
=0 il Afewer one WIgE T wEw | EEe gy e fwowEe
59 TEET 908 (741 'iTHE |

o8, ol 2ok E TRY A4mE MEw Tgem o R a7 TeEn e
w-Tif FrTem-acie TR d g Fm e @ e,es,s8l/-
Bre e weiEn e awrel sfliRem T 99 T | SEhiE Ay
wiEf faprm AE TEEe oEeEe e e g9y e I
PRI ceRTE o SEem i | b Fove wiel e e
wftfiw aEger «fvee 7 ar sewe wif, fasfs A creEm e 6
s TR T, T sfee o S e TERE e o oTerm i
AR TR S TR FEEEI | SR WETEy T e T
i e e S | e e wfsRice T e v were e o
HITHE, |

AT oe.obr.20dwEy T e M IEpe o e O e
e Wi sraEm.aeir Bewrs fm gmerew S owide b
& bty B9, vt/ T (5% A0 e W Wi T =2 5 | W
e wTEf i T T e e Bl wT o S
crFaics cefre® [ aw BEaw W | e frorw wfef R et
e qageE AfeEs B o Gewe S, Tawlt ey aremE @ee e
sy A5 EETR RN T e (0 S (T J TR S
Bufen g | wainm ey I PR oReee on ofeE TmE
T | EATE e Sl S wiee e T s o T |

NS on,ot, 3oy Ee WFE MBS S @ FidE a1 e e
w_AiEE ArEE-cost Bemrw I g St widE Wi w2900, bee)-
5 5% (e oY Teem o 3 9fE Rewmes e wmo o
wETA 2 W fim wrenin o R o PEe ot e
S o et [ oon Sy W | e e = fiem
TR WEE A e [ uw ewws e, Eefs e areER
@ieE e o wfig s, RS e o eem aien 1R e wis
wiieE TN R, S AR I SR 5 e iy wEiE R
Y, T W S FAFE | S wETeg S e AR
e Al fimr | 2R ey wister Tl e T TR o W |

Arnuzl Report 2018 | Popular Life Insurance Company Limfted | 32



EVENTS & HIGHLIGHTS

® of.ob.aoie Bt S Ay wEw TepEe et Fgs gn v
wyre Wi-fiE WrWE-aodr BeEcw W awgew J wide wb
9,00, 30,480/~ TR (FF T W STeEHETy TR N T | SR Y
=fEf fipm e agee Afeee o Ble a3 wenee TRgem
cFrEE ciPes B g e W | wedie Rr weR fiom arenln
wiafs TR AR @ an wews Wi, Baas bam ceER G e
At Wi e, Sl e tne «fem e e, on cifee e
s O T e, el AR GOUER O9TEE T 8 CEls Wi
CET e CEAE e Bl e | wepie ety awe FEE
“TEBIETS e W R W | EEE syt wiEie 3w wiEE T e

TEACE (T IO |

=
%aﬁww

- wrwquwmﬁww“mm!m‘“
g TR TR % YA Y 20,00 000
57.7_!:r5

s e g, e

JJ
=5t ¢

% .04, 20303t T wiF =iEm fes AR T S @
b a7 s dm aemm I T wE AR TYE oA O
20,00,000/= T aofl TymidE o e aye e o =
W | W ayE e faem ST o o e FEn e
TR AR e FEe J@2 Tmoe TEEEm e et [ am
B Wi e wfefie e ofEsee Bogy sews Wi
wevfery Wi frm wfeh fiem P st s =
TAHE, FCES G AT @ @rmE e S oats wiee S e,
A e A P (I e e B weeEnS A o,
g Fifres T =0, 95 M BRA wmmw e dfvs aem
wiElTs TEEy SN 4EE o9 A e e owew o a8 e
20,00,000/= TN O0 TEWAT &F THWT 900 074 5 |

wﬂmﬁmm
! fﬁ-ﬂﬁﬁ?ﬁ?ﬂﬁ‘ﬂ‘;ﬁ‘fqﬁwﬂx:“

577 (7% T :%I
|

e

AT yb.ob, 2o T TE HFm MEF T @ ARG 9 g Jm
SR 42,58, 00/= Fem o= Fm wde o e e oo e
= B | WABIA v uiel ReE TeiE o0e 69 T e e
T e e ke o9 e g R et e
oA Wl | ST wieEE TEEeE e an wews wEE
ey b Rrm =R firm Bfam s w wiEEe
TEAR, FES T4 AT ¢ @R Fiima s=mmens o wieE B e,
T W6 CT o Fie, feasfE cme SemrE @ ET @ T B
werse B | wRre ey wfeRe S o e e e Team g
= 32,53 voo/=BrRE =T Jim i o= wuree Favs o7 HI0EE

. ]
...... s
w1 :”:rﬂl-*' Hr@ﬂ e E
"#HH = mw"ﬂ' lillaﬂ
Wﬁﬂﬂﬂ“' e st men

AT 3¢,.09,303EL B Aomw wET T T WEGT g7 Tew
e WS ACR-aesy W 3,083 W S awp FmowEe min
¢,0,Bo,033/- TR o Tew 7 firmerers weme o o | e o
wief fiEm W TR qREEE e e o= e I
ot e i ow REEw wi | B e Ao wief fipm G
T carere e, RS R o s e e, e we-
TR Ay WA T | IR We T A 4w T @
AR S B WEEEe | S wEeiy S aew AR
Carfieam Toa T | e epw wiefrs S onde B oEne = e
TEE |

Anrual Report 2018 | Popular Life Insurance Company Limited | 33



EVENTS & HIGHLIGHTS

F 3¢.0¢, 303k AR AEF TEIEN @ Bty iRy FEkew
euET WEl ok FEgl Fa, TRT EERR @EFE SEUE 38 | FeE
ey St =fHuy EFEE TR W AR SR e |
FER AT T Bl Rew wrem mern wfiemE e (o e,
IS W @ 7 an ey R, e W W o o, afvem
TR, WIS AR W, s e W, S w6 W
Frgte, B, menin oot Wil o, ceiele wfEfe aryeEn AR
A an wews W, o offay TR W T TeRE o an =R
CAREH |

T 38,3030 R ou.00 WiEE R T TgmEm e P
it oy Tefeerm w3y SRR evEw wE ob, R T, 3w,
TE-dooc TR A6 FA WIHE W | Wew werfey W wEm
FIEMTR CFTE WA FEC SRR W | TS TN Ty B
T, Wrawre =R T wlW oW, T mene @ 7 ay mEw R, oees
T HEFET TEEE (WE SR, ST T, W W e L, wee
TR, WU Wi TR, IR e fenm e, Theee Wy T
wialE e Fd, aewm crae alle 9e, TEEEE R oaw, BEAT W,
(AEge AT, feEm i S e Bias), qEeRm § oag
wewE W, (wEEE aEEe dfisEs Ao ot e e
fefanDs), e FEMTTE T W, MR TEOT, W R, |

AT k.09 303 FPM 300 NHHY AR WEE Twgwm arer s
oot Tt Fefoetcrn =g s cowy Fet ou, et ai/a, st o,
¥l-yooo AR @R wm wEe ) Aen AEmivy e S8
SIS (PRI SeT FETE ST Al | e AWeE A e
i, Thewtat % wew il o=, et Srewet o wn s Fre, Doee
TraEE TR TEEE (W O, W B, WreTE WY e o, ahires
TER, T EER T, THTE WA e e, WA T
=iy fmm F7REEE, e s wlm oW, EeEm 7 oam 38w
axtéft (et ARter, A wite T e Fiide), qeet &
T WeFE wWE], (ST TR AREEE e wEE S ErE
s, *fimE WekR AR whE, TENE TN, SR G,
T, IR e TR, (B arEe s s wide e
e e |

AT 3o-53-30dk TR FTIF 33.00 SHFE AT AEE TN HEA
s Tl S feflcr wdhy SEfoem esw we oo, Fege o/,
S S, E-dooo TR A N Wb wy | wer welfEy @
i S GRS IR SRR S | TS AR T
Efis fipm, Mo = weEn w4, e o 0 7 oow s
e, wore e WFFEE TEE (W ), W, WS W @A
oA, =i T, W WEEER T, TS e firegm e, memEn
itz Tams WA Ty e, srew oo e o, TEehe @ g, 38
e, (e AR, fE i St e B, e &
o g W, (ST wrgeE AEsEE A Ayt e
TR, e FEMEEs AT 6, T O, S GTEEE |

Annuad Report 2018 | Popular Life Insurance Company Limiled | 34



EVENTS & HIGHLIGHTS

mmmmw TSRS T, "IN S | ey, wilte wolrfery o i, wawi TRLGN, WP ST |

ivasal Fapert 718 | Popular Lils inrwres Croepesy Limisd | 35



MESSAGE FROM CHAIRMAN

| am immensely pleased to welcome you all in 19th Annual
General Meeting of Popular Life Insurance Company limited. Your
spontaneous presence and enthusiastic participation in General
Meeting since inception reflects of your firm confidence on the
Company. | hope, this hearty relationship of concerted efforts and
trust will be further growing in the days ahead.

Your company reached into a prestigious position in insurance
sector of the country through attaining professional skill and
excellence in service. With profound pleasure | would like to
apprise you in this august conglomeration that 2018 was a
milestone of our glorious success. We have been able to earn the
highest ever premium income of TK 803.97 crore. This is a
magnificent success in the history of Bangladesh life insurance
industry. | would take the opportunity to extend my sincere
thanks to all the employees, staff and members of management
who made this outstanding achievement happened through
their untiring efforts.
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Various phenomena that took place in national and international spree had made
the year 2018 challenging for us. Polarization in international politics and national
parliamentary election impacted our macro and micro level economic activities.
With all this adversities in force the government of Bangladesh had earned the
credit of 7.86% GDP growth by efficient management of national resources
adopting pro-development programs in the year 2018, We express our hearty
congratulations to the abled government for keeping outstanding success in
economic development continued despite of manifold adversities. The life
insurance sector of the country had also attained 7.84% GDP growth in line with
that of macro economy of the country.

It would give you profound encouragement and ease while be knowing that your
company had achieved another milestone success in settlement of insurance
claims which was highest ever in its operational tenure. Success and reputation of
an insurance company largely depends on its ability to settle life insurance claims.
In the year under review, Popular Life had settled insurance claims of TK.922.09
crore of which TK 831.53 crore was for maturity claim. This is an unprecedented
performance of the company on the history of Bangladesh life insurance sector. |
extend my cordial thanks to claimant of this magnificence achievement,
employee and officer of all level, management team, board of director and our
valued shareholders as well.

We are committed and constantly pursuing our objectives to provide quality
services to policyholders of all level throughout the country as a successful and
potential life insurance company.We have undertaken to reorganize our
insurance policies keeping eye on income segment of potential policyholders. We
designed our investment program from life fund in such a fashion that ensure
higher return among the available investment options resulting in payment of
better bonus to policyholders and highest dividend to valued shareholders which
were ultimate purpose of our doing business. During the year under review, after
charging operational and administrative expenses and the settlement of all
insurance claims our life fund stood at TK 1788.66 crore . In addition our company
earned TK 164.51 crore from investment which is satisfactory in context of our
investment under prevailing situation.

You would be inspired to know that being a profitable organization and as a
corporate citizen ' Popular Life Insurance' never keep away performing social
responsibilities like education, health, culture, sports humanitarian assistances
etc.in its own fashion spontaneously.
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| would like to extend my profound gratitude to all our valued Shareholders,
Policyholders, Regulatory bodies and well-wishers who extended their co-
operation, suggestions and guidance in running the business successfully .|
would also like to record my sincere thanks to employees in all level for their
dedicated services . | believe our concerted efforts will keep the enrichment of
'Popular Life Insurance’ continued in the days ahead.

Allah Hafez,

>fom A
Hasan Ahmed

BS. MS
Iowa State University, USA

&
CLP
People's Republic of Bangladesh
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REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF POPULAR LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY
LIMITED ON COMPLIANCE ON THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

We have examined the compliance status to the Corporate Governance Code by Popular Life
Insurance Company Limited for the year ended on December 31, 2008 This Code relates to the
Matification Ne. BSECACMRRCDYI006-158/207/Admin/B0 dated June 3, 2018 of the Eanglad‘-eih
Securithes and Exchange Commission,

Such compliance with the Corporate Governance Code is the responsibility of the Company.
Our examination was limited to the procedures and implementation thereof as adopted by the
Management in ensuring compliance to the conditions of the Corporate Governance Code,

This is a scrutiny and verification and an independent audit on compliance of the conditions of
the Corporate Governance Code as well as the provisions of relevant Bangladesh Secretarial
Standards (B55) as adopted by Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB) in so far
as those standards are not inconsistent with any condition of this Corparate Governance Code.

We state that we have obtained all the information and explanations, which we have required,
and after due scrutiny and verification thereof, we report that, in our opinion:

{a) The Company has complied with the conditions of the Corporate Governance Code as
stipulated in the above mentioned Corporate Governance Code issued by the
Commission;

{b) The company has complied with the provisions of the relevant Bangladesh Secretarial
Standards [B55) as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh [IC58)
as required by this Code;

(c) Proper books and records have been kept by the company as required under the
Companies Act, 1994, the securities lows and other relevant laws; and

E .

Date: 18052019 Ahmed Mashuque & Co.
Place: Dhaka, Bangladesh Chartered Accountants

(d) The governance of the company s satisfactory.

Buninoas Allinnos Associate of Crowe CGlobal  wesey orovwes, com
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Popular Life Insurance Company Limited
For the year ended 31st December 2018
STATUS OF COMPLIANCE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Annexure-C

Status of compliance with conditions imposed by the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission:

Status of compliance for the year ended 31st December 2018 with conditions imposed by the Commission's Notification
No.BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/B0 dated June 03, 2018 issued under section 2CC of the Bangladesh
Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969 is presented below:

(Report under Condition No. 9.00)

Condition
No.

Title

Compliance status
(Put-./ in the
appropriate column)

Remarks

(if any)

Complied

Not complied

Board of Directors

1.(1)

Board's Size
The number of Board Directors should not be
less than 5 (five) and more than 20 (twenty).

12 (Twelve) Board member
includin 3 (three)
indepencent Directors

1.(2)

Independent Directors

(@)

At least one fifth (1/5) of the total number of
directors in the company's board shall be
independent directors.

There are three
independent Directors
in the Board

(b)
(b) (1)

(b) (i)

(b) (i)

Purpose of Clause "Independent Director":
Who either does not hold any share or holds
less than 1% shares to the total paid-up
shares of the company;

Who is not a sponsor of the company and is
not connected with the companies any
sponsor or director or nominee director or
shareholder of the company or any of its
associates, sister concemns, subsidiaries and
parents or holding Entities who holds one
percent (1%) or more share of the total paid-
up shares of the company on the basis of
family relationship. His/her family members
also should not hold above mentioned shares
in the company.

Who has not been an executive of the company
in immediately preceding 2 (two) financial years.

(b) (iv)

(b) (v)

Who does not have any other relationship
whether pecuniary or otherwise, with the
company or its subsidiary/ associated
companies.

Who is not a member or TREC (Trading Right
Entitlement Geﬂificate} holder, director or
officer of any stock exchange.

(b) (vi)

Who is not a shareholder, director excepting
independent director or officer of any member
or TREC holder of stock EJ(CI'I&FIQE or an
intermediary of the capital market.
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Condition

No.

Title

Compliance status
(Put~in the
appropriate column)

Remarks
(if any)

Complied | Not complied

(b)vi)

(b){vii)

Who is not a partner or an executive or was not
a pariner or an executive during the preceding 3
(three) years of the concerned company's
statutory audit firm or audit firm engaged in
internal audit services or audit firm conducting
special audit or professional certifying
compliance of this Code.

Who shall not be an independent director in
more than 5 (five) listed companies.

(b)ix)

Who has not been convicted by a court of
competent jurisdiction as a defaulter in payment
of any loan or any advance to a bank or a Non-
Bank Financial Institution (NBFI).

(b)(x)
(c)

Who has not been convicted for a criminal
offence involving moral turpitude.

The independent director(s) shall be appointed by the
board of directors and approved by the shareholders
in the Annual General Meeting (AGM).

(d)

The post of independent director(s) can not remain
vacant for more than 90 (ninety) days.

(e)

The tenure of office of an independent director
shall be for a period of 3 (three) years, which
may be extended for 1 (one) term only.

1.(3)

Qualification of Independent Director (ID)

(b)
(b) (i)

Independent Director shall be a knowledgeable
individual with integrity who is able to ensure
compliance with financial, regulatory and corporate
laws and can make meaningful contribution to
business.

Independent director shall have following
qualifications:
Business Leader who is or was a promoter or
director of an unlisted company having minimum
paid-up capital of Tk. 100.00 million or any listed
company or a member of any national or
international chamber of commerce or business
association; or

(b) (i)

Corporate Leader who is or was a top level executive
not lower than Chief Executive Officer or Managing
Director or Deputy Managing Director or Chief
Financial Officer or Head of Finance or Accounts or
Company Secretary or Head of Internal Audit and
Compliance or Head of Legal Service or a candidate
with equivalent position of an unlisted company
having minimum paid up capital of Tk. 100.00 million
or of a listed company; or
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status
(Put~in the

Complied Mot complied

(b){iil) | Former official of government or statustory or|

(b)) | University Teacher who has educational

(e

(d)

(b)

(e)
4

(e

autonomous or regulatory body in the position
| not below 5th Grade of the nalional pay scala,
| who has at leas! educational background of
bachelor degree in eConOMICS OF COMMENcEe of
business or law; of

None

background in Economics or Commerce of
Business Studies or Law; or

TPmlHamnalwhnlsnrmanmm?

practicing at laast in the High Court Division of
Bangladesh Supreme Courl or a Chariered
| Accountant or Cost and Management
| Accountant or Chanered Financial Analys! of
Charterad Certified Accountant or Certified
Public Accountanl or Chartered Managemant

Accountant or Chartered Secratary of equivalent

The independent director shall have al least 10

(ten) years of experiences in any fekd
mentioned in clause (b)

flnmﬂmh%qﬁhﬂmmm’

relaxed subject 1o pnor approval of the
Commission.

mmummmmm
[ The positions of the Chairman of the Board and

the Managing Director (MD) and/or the Chiel
Executive Officer of the companies shall be

| The Managing Director (MD) and/or Chiel Executive

DOfficer (CEQ) of a lsted company shall not hold the
same pasitic:n in anathar ksted compary;

' The Chairperson of the Board shall be elected from

amang the non-executive direcions of the company;

\The Board shal dearly define respective roles and

responsibilites of the Chairperson and the

!'In the absence of the Chalrperson of the Board,

the remaining members may elacl one of
themsalvas from non-axeculive directors as

Chairperson for that particular Board's meating;

the reason of absence of the reqular Chairperson

ghall be duly recorded i the minules.
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Condition Title status

No. “+in the Remarks
appropriate column) (i &ny)
Complied | Not complied

1.5) mwwmw

" |inthe industry.
I Segment-wise or product-wise performance.

()

(i) Rsks and concems

|lju] Inmmmmﬁmmﬁmﬁuﬁt
Huﬁmndﬁutﬁuﬂthhm

o
v
"
v

(] |ﬂhm.amm continuity of any Exira-Ordinary|
None

M_'auhfmamadmnrtmmﬁm-ammm
-ul all related party transactions should be

_ d:nnhmrnhanmaluput

{{wil) Iumﬁmmmmm
{issues and / or through any others instruments. MNA

{y_;i]_*_____ it the financial resull deteriorate

ﬂh{hmmmuhflrﬁdﬁﬂﬂmm
\(IPO), Repeal Public Offering (RPO), Rights| MN/A
| Otfer, Derect Listing, edc.

{x) | I significant variance occurs between Quarery

|Financial performance and Annual Hmmali Nong
| Staternants the management shall explain about
- lmm:ﬁnwmw | |
((x} |Remuneration {0 directors including independent MNone { Mo remuneraion are ko be pad
| directors. | i ool dretrs

(i)  [The financial statements prepared by the|
rnmagemnnl ol the issuer company present
taidy its state of aMairs, the result of its| -~
_ lmmmmﬂmmm
:{:Hj Fmpuhmhuimmalhtmwmmany
I muammmm
(i{xiis) ;.l.ppmpni.ll ‘accounting policies have been
| consistently applied in preparation of the financial
| statements and that the accounting estimales are|
| based on reasonable and prudent judgment.
(xiv] [International Accounting Standards (JAS)
|Bangladesh Accounting Siandards [(BASY
linternational Financial Reporting Standards| .-
[!FFtE_Iqr Bangladesh Financial Reporting
M{amuwmw
{have been followed in preparation of the
il'nm:hl slatements and any departure there-
| from has been adequalely disclosad.

Al Fegot 2014 | Popuier Lbe insoranos Cormpany Limied | 3/



Condition Title

No.

Compliance status
(Put~in the
appropriate column)

Remarks
(if any)

Complied | Not complied

(xv) |The system of internal control is sound in design

and has been effectively implemented and
' monitored.

(xvi) | A statement that minority shareholders have been
protected from abusive actions by, or in the interest
of, controlling shareholders acting either directly or
indirectly and have effective means of redress

"

(xvii) | There are no significant doubts upon the issuer
company's ability to continue as a going
concemn. If the issuer company is not considered
to be a going concern, the fact along with
reasons thereof should be disclosed.

Mone

(xviil) |Significant deviations from the last year's operating
results of the issuer company shall be highlighted
and the reasons thereof should be explained.

(xix) | Key operating and financial data of at least
preceding 5 (five) years shall be summarized.

(xx) | If the issuer company has not declared dividend (cash or
stock) for the year, the reasons thereof shall be given.

N/A

Diidznd has baen recommendad fur
fhe year ended 31 Decamber 2018

(xxi) Board's statement to the effect that no bonus
share or stock dividend has been or shall be
declared as interim dividend (xxii) The number of
Board meetings held during the year and
attendance by each director shall be disclosed.

(xxiii) | The pattern of shareholdings and name wise details
disclosing the aggregate number of shares:

None

No bonus share or stock
dividend has been declared
as interim dividend during
the year 2018.

(xxi)(a) Parent/Subsidiary/Associated Companies and
other related parties (name wise details).

(xxi)(b) Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Company
Secretary, Chief Financial Officer, Head of
Internal Audit and their spouses and minor
children (name wise details).

(xxi){c) | Executives (top five salaried employees of the
company, other than the Directors, Chief
Executive Officer, Company Secretary, Chief
Financial Officer and Head of Internal Audit).

(xxi)(d) Shareholders holding ten percent (10%) or more
voting interest in the company (name wise details).

(xxiv) = Appointment/Reappointment of Directors:

(xxiv)(a) A brief resume of the director.

(xxiv)(b) Mature of his/her expertise in specific functional
|areas.

(xxiv)(c) Mames of companies in which the person also
holds the directorship and the membership of

committees of the board.

Qs
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Condition Title

No.

Compliance status
(Put~in the
appropriate column)

Remarks
(if any)

Complied | Not complied

(xxv) A Management's Discussion and Analysis signed
by CEQ or MD presenting detailed analysis of
the company's position and operations along
with a brief discussion of changes in the financial
statements, among others, focusing on:

{ov){a) | accounting policies and estimation for preparation of
financial statements;

{rov)(b) changes in accounting policies and estimation, if
any, clearly describing the effect on financial
performance or results and financial position as well
as cash flows in absolute figure for such changes;

(xxv){c) 'comparative analysis (including effects of infiation)
of financial performance or results and financial
position as well as cash flows for current financial
year with immediate preceding five years
explaining reasons thereof,

[rov){d) 'compare such financial performance or results and
financial position as well as cash flows with the
| peer industry scenario;

{rov)(e) briefly explain the financial and economic scenario
of the country and the globe;

{exv)(f) risks and concemns issues related to the financial
statements, explaining such risk and concerns
mitigation plan of the company; and

(ov)(g) future plan or projection or forecast for
company's operation, performance and financial
position, with justification thereof, i.e., actual
position shall be explained to the shareholders in
\the next AGM

(xxvi) ' Declaration or cerification by the CEO and the
CFO to the Board as required under condition No.
3(3) shall be disclosed as per Annexure-A; and

(kxvii) The report as well as cerificate regarding
compliance of conditions of this Code as
required under condition No. 9 shall be disclosed
as per Annexure-B and Annexure-C.

1.(6)

Meetings of the Board of Directors the company
shall conduct its Board meetings and record the
minutes of the meetings as well as keep
required books and records in line with the
provisions of the relevant Bangladesh
Secretarial Standards (BSS) as adopted by the
Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh
(ICSB) in so far as those standards are not
inconsistent with any condition of this Code.

Arriued Report 2018 | Popular Life Insurance Company Limited | 51




Condition
No.

Title

Compliance status
(Put~in the
appropriate column)

Remarks
(if any)

Complied | Not complied

1)

Code of Conduct for the Chairperson, other Board
members and Chief Executive Officer:

(&)

The Board shall lay down a code of conduct,
based on the recommendation of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee (NRC) at
condition Mo. 6, for the Chairperson of the
Board, other board members and Chief
Executive Officer of the company;

(b)

The code of conduct as determined by the NRC
shall be posted on the website of the company
including, among others, prudent conduct and
behavior; confidentiality; conflict of interest;
compliance with laws, rules and regulations;
prohibition of insider trading; relationship with
environment, employees, customers and
suppliers; and independency.

(a)

Governance of Board of Directors of Subsidiary
Company

Provisions relating to the composition of the Board of
Directors of the holding company shall be made
applicable to the composition of the Board of Directors
of the subsidiary company.

(b)

Atleast 1 {one) independent director on the Board of
Directors of the holding company shall be a director
on the Board of Directors of the subsidiary company.

(c)

(d)

The minutes of the Board meeting of the subsidiary
company shall be placed for review at the following
Board meeting of the holding company.

The minutes of the respective Board meeting of the
holding company shall state that they have reviewed
the affairs of the subsidiary company also.

(e)

The Audit Committee of the holding company shall
also review the financial statements, in particular
the investments made by the subsidiary company.

Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive Officer
(CEQ), Chief Financial Officer (CFQ), Head of
Internal Audit and Compliance (HIAC) and
Company Secretary (CS):

(1)

Appointment:

(@)

The Board shall appoint a Managing Director {MD) or
Chief Executive Officer (CEOQ), a Company
Secretary (CS), a Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and

a Head of Internal Audit and Compliance (HIAC);
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No.

Title

Compliance status
(Putin the
appropriate column)

Remarks
(if any)

Complied = Not complied

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

The positions of the Managing Director (MD) or
Chief Executive Officer (CEO), Company
Secretary (CS), Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
and Head of Internal Audit and Compliance
(HIAC) shall be filled by different individuals;

The MD or CEQ, CS, CFO and HIAC of a listed
company shall not hold any executive position in
any other company at the same time;

The Board shall clearly define respective roles,
responsibilities and duties of the CFOQ, the HIAC
and the CS;

The MD or CEOQ, CS, CFO and HIAC shall not be
removed from their position without approval of
the Board as well as immediate dissemination to
the Commission and stock exchange(s).

_\{/’

No removal happened
in this year

@)

Requirement to attend Board of Directors' Meetings:
The MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC of the
company shall attend the meetings of the Board:

)
()

(a)(i)

Duties of Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive
Officer (CEQ) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO):
The MD or CEO and CFO shall ceriify fo the Board that
they have reviewed financial statements for the year
and that to the best of their knowledge and belief:
these statements do not contain any materially
untrue statement or omit any material fact or
contain statements that might be misleading; and

(a)fii)

(b)

these statements together present a true and fair
view of the company's affairs and are in
compliance with existing accounting standards
and applicable laws;

The MD or CEO and CFO shall also certify that
there are, to the best of knowledge and belief,
no fransactions entered info by the company
during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or in
violation of the code of conduct for the
company's Board or its members;

(c)

The certification of the MD or CEO and CFO shall
be disclosed in the Annual Report.

Board of Directors' Commitiee: For ensuring good
governance in the company, the Board shall
have at least following subcommittees: (i) Audit
Committee; and (i) Nomination and
Remuneration Committee.

Arnsl Report 2018 | Popular Ufia Insuranca Compary Limitad | 53




Condition
No.

Title
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(Put~in the
appropriate column)

Remarks

(if any)

Complied | Not complied

Audit Committee

(1)

Responsibility to the Board of Directors

(a)

The company shall have an Audit Commitiee as
a sub-committee of the Board of Directors.

(b)

(c)

(¢J]

The Audit Committee shall assist the Board of
Directors in ensuring that the financial
statements reflect true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the company and in ensuring a good
monitoring system within the business.

The Audit Committee shall be responsible to the
Board of Directors. The duties of the Audit
Commitiee shall be clearly set forth in writing.
Constitution of the Audit Committee

(a)

The Audit Commitiee shall be composed of at
least 3 (three) members.

(b)

The Board shall appoint members of the Audit
Committee who shall be non-executive directors
of the company excepting Chairperson of the
Board and shall include at least 1 (ong)
independent director;

(c)

All members of the audit committee should be
"financially literate®™ and at least 1 {one) member
shall have accounting or related financial
management background and 10 (ien) years of
such experience;

(d)

When the term of service of any Committee
member expires or there is any circumstance
causing any Committee member to be unable fo
hold office before expiration of the term of
service, thus making the number of the
Committee members to be lower than the
prescribed number of 3 (three) persons, the
Board shall appoint the new Committee member
to fill up the vacancy immediately or not later
than 1 (one) month from the date of vacancy in
the Committee to ensure continuity of the

(e)

performance of work of the Audit Committes;
The company secretary shall act as the secretary

()

of the Committee.

The quorum of the Audit Committee meeting shall
not constitute without at least 1 (one)
independent director.
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No. (Put~in the Remarks
appropriate column) (if any)

Complied | Not complied

(3) Chairman of the Audit Committee

(a)  |The Board of Directors shall select 1 (one) member of
the Audit Committee to be Chairman of the Auditf
Committee, who shall be an independent director.

(b)  |In the absence of the Chairperson of the Audit
Committee, the remaining members may elect
one of themselves as Chairperson for that
particular meeting, in that case there shallbe no| .~
problem of constituting a quorum as required
under condition No. 5(4)(b) and the reason of
absence of the regular Chairperson shall be duly
recorded in the minutes.

(c) Chairman of the audit committee shall remain e
present in the Annual General Meeting (AGM).
(@  |Meeting of the Audit Committee

(a) The Audit Committee shall conduct at least its four Twelve audit committee
meetings in a financial year: Provided that any meeting were held
emergency meeting in addition to regular, during the year 2018

meeting may be convened at the request of any
one of the members of the Committee;

(b) The quorum of the meeting of the Audit Committee
shall be constituted in presence of either two

members or two third of the members of the Audit| -~
Committee, whichever is higher, where presence
of an independent director is a must.

(5) Role of Audit Committee

(a) Oversee the financial reporting process. e

(b) Monitor choice of accounting policies and principles. o

(c) Monitor Internal Control Risk management process. o

(d) Oversee hiring and performance of external auditors v

(e) hold meeting with the external or statutory auditors for
review of the annual financial statements before| -~
submission to the Board for approval or adoption;

{f) Review along with the management, the annual
financial statements before submission to the|
board for approval.

{a) Review along with the management, the quarterly
and half yearly financial statemenis before| -~
submission to the board for approval.

(h) Review the adequacy of internal audit function. v

(i) review the Management's Discussion and Analysis &
before disclosing in the Annual Report;

(i) Review statement of significant related party o
fransactions submitted by the management.

(k) Review Management Letters/ Letter of Intemal o

Control weakness issued by statutory auditors.
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0

(m)

(6)

oversee the determination of audit fees based on
scope and magnitude, level of experise
deployed and time required for effective audit
and evaluate the performance of external
auditors; and

oversee whether the proceeds raised through Initial
Public Offering (IPO) or Repeat Public Offering
(RPO) or Rights Share Offer have been utilized as
per the purposes stated in relevant offer document
or prospectus approved by the Commission:
meponlng of the Audit Committee

N/A

(a)

eporting to the Board of Directors

)

The Audit Committee shall report on its activities
to the Board of Directors.

(i)

The Audit Committee shall immediately report to the
Board of Directors on the following findings, if any:

(i) (a)

Report on conflicts of interests.

None

(i) (b)

Suspected or presumed fraud or irregularity or
material defect in the internal control system.

None

(i)} (c)

Suspected infringement of laws, including securities
related laws, rules and regulations.

None

(i) (d)
()

Any other matter which shall be disclosed to the
Board of Directors immediately.

Reporting to the Authorities: If the Audit Committee
has reported to the Board of Directors about
anything which has material impact on the financial
condition and results of operation and has discussed
with the Board of Directors and the management
that any rectification is necessary and if the Audit
Committee finds that such rectification has been
unreasonably ignored, the Audit Committee shall
report such finding o the Commission, upon
reporting of such matters to the Board of Directors
for three times or completion of a period of 6 (six)
months from the date of first reporting to the Board
of Directors, whichever is earlier.

MNone

None

(7)

Reporting to the Shareholders and General
Investors: Report on activities carried out by the
Audit Committee, including any report made to
the Board of Directors under condition 3.4.1 (i)
above during the year, shall be signed by the
Chairman of the Audit Committee and disclosed
in the annual report of the issuer company.
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(Put *"In the
appropriate column)

(if any)

Complied = Not complied

- Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC)

Responsibility 1o the Board of Directors

l,’aT_‘TEE " company shall have a Nomination and
|Remuneration Committee (NRC) as a
:mhmmﬂmnllmawd;

?[Er]' |The NRC shall assist the Board in formulation of

|the nomination crilerda or policy for determining
|qualifications, positive aftributes, experiences
and independence of directors and top level
executive as well as a policy lor formal process
|of considering remuneration of direclors, fop
level executive,

ey wamﬂqﬁdmﬁuﬂ:uﬁm NRC shal|

b clearly st forth in wriling covering the areas
'stated al the condition Mo. 8{5) (b).
{2)  Constitution of the NRC

(a) | The Commitiee shall comprise of at least three|

members inciuding an independent director;

{‘u

M_._u_ ............... e e S
executive dinectons;

:[n} 'mﬂmmmmm'

and appointed by the Board;

e T S g e e

appoint any member of the Committee;

o) | In case ol death, resignation, disqualification, or’

removal of any member of the Commitiee or in
any other cases of vacancies, the board shall fill
| the vacancy within 180 (one hundred sighty) days
of occurming such vacancy in the Commitiee;

t bty

o] (S =]

() |The Chairperson of the Commitiee may appoint
or co-opt any exdemnal expert andior member(s)
of staff 1o the Commitiee as advisor who shall be
non-voling membser, if the Chairperson feels that
advice or suggestion from such external expert
\andfor member(s) of stafl shall be required or
valuabde for the Commitiee;

@ The company secretary shall act as the secretary

of the Committee;

i(h) | The quorum of the NRC meeting shall nol constitule’

| without atiendance of at least an independent director,

) | Mo member of the NRC shal receive, either directly

of indirectly, ary ramuneration for any advisony or
consultancy role or otherwise, ofher than Direclor's
fees or honorarium from the compary.

W
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status
(Put~in the
appropriate column)

(it any)

Complied = Not complied

' Chairperson of the NAC

The Board shall selact 1 (one) member of the NAC |

o be Chairperson of the Comimities, who shall
be an independant director;

'In the absence of the Chairperson of the NRC, the|

remaining mambers may elect one of themsalves
as Chairperson for that particular meeting, the
reason of absance of the reguiar Chairperson

' shall be duly recorded in the minutes;

©

ﬂi =il

{a}
(.

(2]

@
(5)
@)
b)

(0]

(]

(b)

The Chakrperson of the NRAC shall afiend the

-mmmmﬂ]umm

of the shareholdars.

JERBSUNREL AR NER KU ROVMNCRS
MeetingoftheNRC
' The NRC shall conduct at least one mesting in a
financial year,

'The Chairperson of the NRC may convene any

emergency meeling upon request by any
member of the NRC;

annmnflurmﬂuﬂluﬂﬂﬂdﬂh'

consfituted in presanca of either two members o
two thied of the members of the Commities,
whichever is higher, where presence of an
independent director is mus! as required under
‘condition No. B(2)(h]:

‘The proceedings of each meeting of the NAC shall

duly be recordad in the minutes and such minules

:shall be confirmed in the next meeting of the NRC. |

' Role of the NRC

' NAC shall be independent and responsible or

{accountabla to the Board and to the shansholders;

NRC shall oversee, among others, the following

matiers and make reporl with recommendalion
fo the Board:
Mhuﬂuhmqﬂﬁﬂm
positive attributes and independence of a director
and recammend a policy ko the Board, retating 1o the
remuneration of the directors, top level exscutive,
| considering the following:

the fevel and composition of remuneration i reasonable’

and sufficiant 1o atiract, retain and motivale suitable
 dreclors 1o run ti compary

succassiully; |
'the relationship of remuneration to perlomance is

clear and meels appropriate performance
benchmarks; and
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(if)

v)
{(vi)

lic)

7.
|

| devising a policy on Board's diversiy taking inio.

“formutating the craeria for evaluaion of performance

remuneration o directors, top level executive
linvolves a balance between fixed and incentive
|pay reflacting short and long-term performance

'MWMHWMWNME
{ and its

consideration age, gender, experence, athnicity,
educational background and nationality,

mmwmmmmﬂkﬁndmhﬂmm
\directors and who may ba appointed in lop level
executive position in accordance with the critena
laid down, and recommend their appointment
\and removal 1o the Board;

nfmmmmmmm
| ideniiying the company's needs for employess at
citferant levels and determine their selection, transier
or replacement and promotion critena; and
mmmmm“|
|company’s human rescurces and braining poicies; |

mwﬁmmmmmmmml
-uﬁnﬁnﬂﬂﬂﬂ&ﬂuhmﬂamhﬁsl
| annual report. -

T

T e
or statutory suditors to perform the following
‘services of the company, namely: |

|Appraisal of valuation mwmm[

| Financial information systems design and
implementation.

"Book-keeping o other services related 1o tha|

\aceounting records of financial stalements.

:mm
| Internal audd serices.

'Any other service that the Audit Commities|
datermines.

fuudftﬂrnﬂrﬁmhamma-mmﬂmhmafi

corporate governance as required under
condition No. 8(1); and

S e euiin Dol o T '

Mo partner or employees of the external audit fems|
shall possess any share of the company they audit
;mmmmmﬂmmw

of that company.

SSSS] S S S

5
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(Put~in the
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(if any)
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(3)

Representative of external or statutory auditors
shall remain present in the Shareholders
Meeting (Annual General Meeting or
Extraordinary General Meeting) to answer the
gueries of the shareholders.

Maintaining a website by the Company.-

e

(1)
(2)

The company shall have an official website linked
with the website of the stock exchange.

The company shall keep the website functional
from the date of listing.

&

(3)

(1)

The company shall make available the detailed
disclosures on its website as required under the
listing regulations of the concerned stock
exchange(s).

Reporting and Compliance of Corporate
Governance

The company shall obtain a certificate from a
practicing Professional Accountant/ Secretary
(Chartered Accountant/ Cost and Management
Accountant/ Chartered Secretary) regarding
compliance of conditions of Corporate
Governance Guidelines of the Commission and
shall send the same to the shareholders along
with the Annual Report on a yearly basis.

(2)

(3)

The professional who will provide the certificate
on compliance of this Corporate Governance
Code shall be appointed by the shareholders in
the annual general meeting.

The directors of the company shall state, in
accordance with the Annexure attached, in the
directors' report whether the company has
complied with these conditions.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

Bismillahir Rahmanir Rahim,
Dear Shareholders, Assalamu Alaikum,

With immense pleasure, | on behalf of board of direciors of Popular Life Insurance Company
Limited presenting directors' report for the year ending 31st December, 2018 you would be
delighted fo know that the year 2018 was a milestone in terms of highast revenue eamings il
now in the history of your beloved company. Despite of presence ol some Macro-economic
indicators, your company confidently attained this significant achievement.

Financial Result:
During the year, tolal premium income of the Company Increased o Tk. 803.87 Crorg from

Tk. 501.04 Crore of 2017 registering a magnificent increase of 60.44% over last year revenus.
The summary of premium income under schemes has been given below.
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Particulars

First year premium :

Individual Life

Janapriya Bima

Islami Bima (Takaful)
Al-Amin Bima

Islami DPS Bima
Popular DPS Bima
Al-Barakah Islami Bima
Al-Barakah Islami DPS Bima
Janapriva Akok Bima
Al-Amin Akok Bima
Islami DPS Khudra Akok
Janapriva Khudra Akok

Renewal premium :
Individual Life

Janapriya Bima

Islami Bima (Takaful)
Al-Amin Bima

Islami DPS Bima
Popular DPS Bima
Al-Barakah Islami Bima
Al-Barakah Islami DPS Bima
Janapriya Akok Bima
Al-Amin Akok Bima
Islami DPS Khudra Akok
Janaprya Khudra Akok

Group INSUrance premium :

Group Insurance

Life Fund

Claim

Managament Expenses

Commission to Insurance Agents
Allowances & Commission

{other than Commission included in above)
Administrative & other axpanses

A ragert 31 Pepd | e Yy | i

2018

(In crore Taka)

79.30
61.78
56.99
124.03
46.83
19.31
45.46
36.96
17.49
45.00
12.43

[ arzr
17.27
| 2478
58.70
16.19
| 805
19.29
14.74

on
1,787.66
922.09
506.05
237.10

103.38
168557

62

2017
(In crore Taka)

41,63
30.20
32.34
66.09
16.90
9.65
2711
11.48
10.63
20.57
4.28
4.62
275.49

39.04
11.52
24,35
43.43
12.26
7.69
19.50
13.54
B.51
28.88
B.90
7.95
22555
501.04

0.12
2,286.54
621.85
247 .45
81.73

36.45
129.39



Apart from premium income, other income avenues of the company were also competitive, although
decreased in number. Income from interest on fixed deposits and dividend received from shares
were less than those of last year. Whereas profit from sale of shares increased by around 94%.

Life Fund:

It's a matter of firm confidence to apprise you that the company had attained another milestone in
respect to claim settlement. In the year 2018 we settled claims of Taka 9,220,881,526 under different
category like death, maturity, surrender etc. which is highest ever in the history of Bangladesh life
insurance sector. As a result Life Fund of the Company decreased marginally. Total Life Fund of the
Company as on 31st December, 2018 stood at Tk. 1,788.66 Crore as against Tk. 2,286.54 Crore in
the preceding year.

Actuarial Valuation:

The Board of Directors of the Company decided to conduct Actuarial Valuation yearly and
accordingly the Actuarial Valuation of the assets & liabilities of the Company as on December 31,
2018 was carried out. The Valuation results have shown a surplus of Tk. 297.26 Crore out of which
Tk. 269.91 Crore have been allocated for Bonus to policyholders.

Besides the balances on Short Term Deposit Accounts with various Banks at the end of the year
2018 stands at Tk. 13.24 Crore which will be relocated to higher yield Investment Avenue.

Services to Policyholder:

The reputation and progress of the Company largely depend on prompt and efficient services
rendered to the policyholders. Keeping this in view, we have further strengthened our services
through automation of working systems and operation environment.

A large network of several hundred offices in the rural as well as urban centers throughout the
country renders all necessary services to the policyholders. The management trying to make
digitalized fo its Zonal & Regional Offices gradually and by now activities of many Zonal Offices has
already been computerized.

The settlement of claims is a very important aspect of services to the policyholders. Hence the
Company has laid great emphasis on expeditious settlement of maturity, survival as well as death
claims. From last few years the Company has decentralized the claims settlement operation through
Zonal & Regional Offices for rendering prompt services to the policyholders. During the year, the
Company has settled claims for Tk. 922.09 Crore.

On the other hand, claims by maturity have been coming up in larger quantum in commensurate with
the service length of Company.

Human Resources Management:
Insurance industry is a place where services of experienced hands are absolutely necessary. PLICL

is fully aware of this fact and from the beginning of its formation it tried sound insurance experts hire
and other executives from the insurance field of the country with attractive compensation package.

Annual Fieport 2018 | Popular Life Insurance Company Limiled | 63



Apart from normal compensation package, PLICL has introduced employee benefits like festival
bonus, gratuity, contributory Provident fund, eam leave, sick leave, matemity leave for female
employees, group insurance, Housing in order to increase work efficiency, at different level of
emplacement. PLICL organizes training for its employee on regular basis. PLICL organizes in
house training from time to time for the field workers and others related with policy sales,
underwriting, claim management, Re-insurance and practice of Takaful system.

Board of Directors:

m  Board composition:
The Board of Directors of the Company is having 12 (tiwelve) members, Three of them are
Independent Director.

m  Independent Directors
Mr. Md. Khaled Mosharef, Mr. Molla Golam Mchammad and Mohammed Abu Kauchar are
the Independent Directors of the Company.

Sponsor Directors:

In accordance with Article 83(1) of the Articles of Association of the Company, Two sponsor
directors shall retire from office at the 19th Annual General Meeting. The retiring Directors are:

1. Mr. Md. Motaher Hussain and
2. Mr. M Fazle Taher

Being eligible they offered themselves for re-election.
Public Subscribers' Directors:

In accordance with the provision under Article 83(2) of the Articles of Association of the Company
and as provided under Insurance Act Director, Mr. Mohammed Amir Hossain Chowdhury And Mr.
Mohammed Zahirul Islam Chowdhury shall retire from the office by rotation and being eligible offer
himself for re-election.

Public notification in regard to election of Public Subscribers' Director has been published in the 2
(Two) national dailies namely The Daily Matrichaya and The Daily Morning Glory.

Sub-Committee:

In order to continue un-interrupted success flow of the Company and ensure good governance the
Company has established 05 (Five) sub-committees named as Audit Committee, Claim Committee,
Real Estate Committee, Investment Commitiee and Nomination and Remuneration Committee
(NRC) respectively. The main objectives of these committees are to protect the interest of the
subscribers of the Company along with to ensure the interest of the Company in some specified
concemns and perform every related task of it with a transparent view. A separate report on
Corporate Governance is provided as part of the Annual Report.
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Audit Committee of the Board:

For ensuring transparency & accountability in the operations of the Company to ensure that the activities
are conducted within the framework of principles and policies as laid down by the Board, as well as the
guidelines of the Securities and Exchange Commission's notification no. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/
207/Admin/80 dated June 03, 2018. The Audit Committee reviewed the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended 31st December, 2018 audited by the External Auditors stressing on the
importance of the compliance culture within the Company.

Nomination and remuneration Committee (NRC):

In compliance with Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 and dated June 3, 2018
issued by the Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission, Popular Life Insurance Company Ltd.
established a Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) which is a sub-committee of the Board of
Directors. The NRC shall be independent and responsible or accountable to the Board and to the
Shareholders of the Company.

Dividend:

The Board of Directors has recommended 40% cash dividend against each share of Taka 10(Ten). While
recommending the dividend the Board of Directors has taken into consideration the results of Actuarial
valuation for the year ended 31 December, 2018 and the life Fund as on that date.

Auditors:

Pursuant to Section 210 of the Companies Act, 1994, the Company's statutory auditors G. Kibria & Co.
Chartered Accountants shall retire at the 19th Annual General Meeting. Being eligible the Board
recommend M/s. Shafiq Basak & Co. Chartered Accountants as statutory auditor for the year 31st
December 2019.

Risk Management:

Business and risk are impenetrably connected with one another. They are alike two sides of the same
coin. In comparison with other business risk level of insurance business is significantly mentionable. Risk
is the component of uncertainty or probability of loss which is very important for insurance business.
Sound implementation of legitimate and calculated risk management are the fundamental to long run
success of insurance industry. One of the prime objectives of the Company is to protect the interest of
stakeholders and implementation of risk management by strengthening, increasing of power & delegation
and executing of optimal level of control. In consequence the position and reputation of the Company will
be increased as a life insurance Company in the society which will ultimately cooperate to fulfill the social
responsibilities.

Corporate Social Responsibility:
We are dedicated fo stand in good move with effective, positive and principled engagement with our
stakeholders; looking at making our operations lucrative, but beyond shori-time gains. We always keep

our awareness to consume less power energy, reduce the use of fuel and harmful emissions. Popular
Life Insurance Co. Lid. always acknowledges its social responsibilities as it is an inseparable part of the
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society, The Company is always aware aboul its social responsibilities and also devoled to accomplish
such responsibilities at a regular basis. As the main component of insurance business is deployed from
the society therefore fo perform various types of developing and awareness building program is always
very significant one to the Company. Our corporate social responsibility covered all related parties of the
Company.

Corporate Governance:

The company has complied with all the necessary guidelines under BSEC Nolification No.
BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated June 03, 2018. A cedificate of Compliance required
under the said Guidelines, as provided by M/s. Ahmed Mashugue & Co., Chartered Accountants, is
annexed in the Annual Report 2018.

M/s, Ahmed Mashuque & Co., Chartered Accountants, have expressed their interest to be appointed as
Corporate Governance Compliance Auditors of the Company for the year 2019. The Board of Direclors
has accepted the willingness of M/s. Ahmed Mashuque & Co., Chartered Accountants, for appointment
as Corporate Govemance Compliance Auditors for the year ending December 31, 2019, which is being
placed in the 18th Annual Genaral Meeting for approval,

Directors® Responsibility Statement:

With regard to responsibilities for preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements, the Direclors
confirm that:

1. Tha financial siatements logether with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the
companies Act, 1984, Insurance Act. 2010, Insurance Rules 1958 and securities and Exchange
Rules 1387. These slalements preseni fairy the Company's slaternent of affairs, the result of ils
operation and cash flow;

2. In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed
along with proper explanation relaling material depariura, if any;

3. The Directors had selected each accounting policy and applied them consistently and made

judgments and estimales that are reasonable and prudent so as o give a true and fair view of the
stale of affairs of the Company al the end of financial year and of the results of the Company for

that pericd;

4. The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance ol adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Company's Act, 1994, Insurance Act, 2010,
Insurance Rules 1958 and Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irmegularities;

5. The Directors had prepared the annual accounts on 'Going Concemn' basis;

6. The Internal Control system is sound in design and effectively implemented and monitored;

7. The key operating and financial data of the last five years is annexed as Financial Highlights.
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Evolving Technology:

The Company has pursued the care of technology, with due diligence, to yield forward its operations.
Latest technology hence has played a vibrant role, reforming the operations cost commendably and
ranging progressive insurance solutions. Countrywide our offices are being gradually brought online. We
have an updated websites containing all relevant information both for the subscribers and potential
investors.

Contribution to the National Exchequer:

The Company has contributed Tk. 28.37 Crore to the National Exchequer during the year 2018 in the
form of direct and indirect taxes and other mandatory contributions as per existing law.

Business Plan for 2019:

The Company has set up its business strategy for boosting up of its Individual life, Janapriya Bima, Islami
Bima (Takaful), Al-Amin Bima, Islami DPS Bima, Popular DPS Bima, Al-Barakah Islami Bima, Al-Barakh
Islami DPS Bima, Janapriya Ekok Bima, Al-Amin Ekok Bima, Islami DPS Khudra Akok and Janapriya
Khudra Akok division business and planned for achieving a premium for the year, 2019. The
management believes that projected is achievable if the economic and political condition of the country
remains steady and that there occurs no natural calamity in the country.

Acknowledgement:

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | take this unique opportunity to thank all our honorable Directors’
shareholders, Directors, Members of Shariah council and Managing Director for their continued support
& co-operation. | also express my sincere gratitude to our valued policyholders, the office of the
Insurance Development and Regulatory Authority, concerned Ministries, Registrar of Joint Stock
companies & Firms, Securities and Exchange Commission, office of Dhaka & Chittagong Stock
Exchanges, our Bankers and other esteemed well-wisher for their co-operation, support & confidence.

We also put on record our sincere appreciation for the efforts of the marketing personnel and devotion of
the employees to their duties.

On behalf of Board of Directors,
Nt~ A ¢

Hasan Ahmed Dated Dhaka
Chairman 18 May 2019
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SHAREHOLDING

The classification of shareholders by Shareholding as at 31"December 2018

No.of Shares No.of shareholders
01-10 173
11-20 40
21-30 10
31-40 18
41-50 28
51-100 a3
101-150 18
151-500 157
501-1000 150
1001-5000 292
5001-10000 65
10001-50000 62
50001-100000 15
100001-200000 13
200001-30000 9
300001-400000 5
400001-500000 7
500001-600000 3
600001-above 24
Total 1172
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Board Meeting and attendance during the year ended 3151 December 2018

= Number of
; Name of Directors IR Dat || Maangs Remarks
member
| 01 Mr. Hasan Ahmed 12 1 Leave raconded
|02 Mr. Md. Mataher Hussain 12 12
| 03| Mr.M.Fazle Taher 12 12
| 04| Mr. Shamsul Aroin Khaled 12 06 | Leaverecorded
05 | Mrs. NurJahan Ahmed 12 06 Leave recorded |
| 06 | MrKahirAhmed 12 L Leave recorded
o7 Mrs. Farjana Jahan Ahmed 12 06 Leave recorded
| 08 | Mr. Mohammed Amir Hossain Chowdhury 12 12
8 Mr. Mohammed Zahirul fstam Chowdhury 12 12
10 Mr. A K M Aminul Mannan 08 08 Resign
[ 1 Mr, Md. Khaled Mosharef Hossain 12 12
| 12 Mr. Molla Golam Mohammad 12 1" Leave recorded |
13 Mr, Mohammed Abu Kauchar 02 02 Joiring 29.11.2018 |
Audit Committee Meeting and attendance during the year 2018
s/ :ﬂu Meeti
4 Name of Directors mm Eoannos Remarks
member
| 01| M A K. M. Aminl Mannan i) 08 Resign Diate 27.08.2018 |
02 | Mr. Hasan Ahmed 12 11 Leave recorded
e et 2 - Leave recorded
| 04| Mr. Shamsul Arefin Khaled 12 06 Leave recorded
05 | Mr. Kabir Ahmed 12 1  Leave recorded
06 | Mr. Mohammed Amir Hossan Chowdhury 12 12
07 | Mr. Mohammed Zahinul Islam Chowdhury | 12 12
08| Mr. Md. Khaled Mosharel Hossain i 04 ™ | Joining Date 28.092018
Claim Committes Meeting and attendance during the year 2018
s/ I::m Meeti
4 Name of Directors mestings held | Meetings | Remarks
member
01 | Mr. Md. Motaher Hussain 12 12 ——t
| 02 | M. Hasan Ahmad : 12 1 Leave recorded
| 03 | Mr. Shamsul Arefin Khaled ! 12 | 08 Leave recorded
| 04 | Mr. Kabir Ahmed ! 12 . 1 Leave recorded
| 05 | Mr. Mohammed Amir Hossain Chowdhury | 12 | 12
06 | Mr. Mohammed Zahini Isiam Chowdhury | 12 12
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Real Estate Commitiee Meeting and attendance during the year 2018

= Number of
= Name of Directors [RSRES elc || Maeings Remarks
member
| 01 | Engr.M.ATaher 12 12 -
02 | Mr.Hasan Ahmed 12 | n leaverecorded |
03 | M. Shamsul Arefin Khaled o | 06 Leavarscoed |
04 | Mr.Kabir Ahmed 12 1" Leave recorded
05 | Mr. Mohammed Amik Hossain Chowdhury 12 12 |
06 | Mr. Mohammed Zahinul lslam Chowdhury 12 12 i
Investment Committee Meeting and attendance during the year 2018
& Number of
5 Name of Directors [RESVGR hafd || Mestinos Remarks
member
01 | M, Mohammed Zahind Isiam Chowdhury 12 12 !
02 | Ms. Hasan Abmed 12 1 Leave recorded |
B TE i : -y e
| 04 | Mr. Kabir Ahmed 12 [ Leave recorded |
| 05 | WM. Mohammed Amir Hossain Chowdhury 12 | 12
Nomination & Remuneration Committee Meeting and attendance during the year 2018
o "“"'h".ﬂu
L Hiana. of Dieci i Whilsta board | tiended il
member
| 01| Mr. Molia Golam Mohammad T
| 02 | M Hasan Ahmed L [ |
| 03 | M. Md. Motaher Hussain 1 I |
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The pattemn of shareholding as on December 31, 2018

] Parent/Subsidiary/Associate Companies:
SiL Name of Parent/Subsidiary/Assoclate Companies Status Share held Percentage
1. Nil Nil Nil Nil
]| Directors, Chief executive officer, Chief Financial officer, Company Secretary, Head of Intemnal Auditor and
their spouses and minor children:
Name of Directors, Chief executive officer, Chief Share held
Financial officer, Company Secretary, T :
S| Head of Inormal Auditor and hei spouses R Self | Spouse| Minor | Percentage
and minor children Children
0. Mr. Hasan Ahmed Chalrman 4,028,554 Mil Nil 6.67%
02, Mr. Md. Motaher Hussain Vice Chairman 1,208,562 Nil Nil 2.00%
03. Mr. M. Fazle Taher Sponsor Director 1,208,562 Nil Nil 2.00%
04, Mr. Shamsul Arefin Khaled Sponsor Director 1,210,003 Nil Nil 2.00%
05. Mrs. Mur Jahan Ahmed Sponsor Director 1,208,562 Nil Nil 2.00%
06. Mr. Kabir Ahmed Sponsor Director 1,208,562 Nil Nil 2.00%
07. Mrs. Farjana Jahan Ahmed Sponsor Director | 1,986,012 Mil Nil 3.29%
08, Mr. Mohammed Amir Hossain Chowdhury Public Director 1,216,261 il Nil 2.01%
09. Mr. Mohammed Zahirul Islam Chowdhury Public Director 1,208,565 il Nil 2.00%
10. Mr. Md. Khaled Mosharef Hossain Independent - il Nil Nil
Director
1. Mr. Molla Golam Mohammad Independent — il Nil Nil
Director
12, Mr. Mohammed Abu Kauchar Independent — il il il
Director
13, Mr. B M Yousuf Ali Managing Director & 7,962 il il 0.013%
Chief Executive Officer
14, Mr. Kazi Md, Fazlul Karim Chiet Financial - hil il il
Officer
15, Mr. Mostofa Helal Kabir Company Secretary - hil Wil Nil
16. Mr. Nandan Bhattacharjee Head of - Mil Nil Nil
Internal Auditor
) Executives (as explained in the BSEC's Nofification (top 5 salaried person except the above persons) ;
S Mame of Executive as explained in the BSEC's
Motification (top 5 salaried person except the Status Share held Percentage
above persons) |
1. Mr. B M Showkat Ali Additional Managing Director Nil Nil
2, Mr. Alamger Feroj Deputy Managing Director Nil Nil
3. Mr. Feroz Iftakher Deputy Managing Director Nil il
4, Mr. Emad Uddin Ahmed Prince Deputy Managing Director Nil il
5. Mr. Sayed Motahar Hossain Deputy Managing Director Nil il
v) Shareholders holding ten percent or more voting interest:
SiL MName of Shareholders holding ten percent or more
voting interest Status Share held Percentage
1. Nil Nil Nil Mil
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MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

According to the «clause no. 5 (XXV] of notification no.
BSEC/CMRRCD/2006158/207/Admin/80 dated June3, 2018, detailed analysis of the
company's position and operations along with a brief discussion of changes in the
financial statements are as follows:

Accounting policies and estimation:

We followed International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and the Companies
Act, 1994 in preparation of financial statements. These financial statements follow
the requirements of IFRSs which are to some extent different from the requirement
of the Companies Act, 1994. However, the Company also complied with the
requirements of following laws and regulations from various Government bodies:

i. Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Rules 1987;
ii.The Income Tax ordinance, 1984; and
jii. The Value Added Tax Act, 1991;

In preparing financial statements, management has made judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to estimates are recognized prospectively.

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the
most significant effects on the amounts recognized in the financial statements is
included in note 27:

Changes in accounting policies and estimation and its effect:

In 2018, there is no such impact in the financial performance or results and financial
position as well as cash flows for any changes in accounting policies and estimation.

Comparative analysis o financial performance of preceding five years:
In 2018 the Company achieved 60.44% growth vs previous year with a total

premium income of Taka 803.87 Crore million. We also managed to expand our
claim by 48.28% vs previous year.
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FINANCIAL RESULTS 2018 in BDT Crore
Total Premium Income in Crore 803.87
Group Insurance Premium 0.1
Life Insurance Fund 1788.66
Claim 922.09
Magt. Expense 506.05
Commission to Insurance Agents 237.10
Allowances & Commission (other than Commission included in above) 103.38
Administrative & other expenses 165.57
Premium income 803.87
Interest, Dividends and Rents 148.54
Income from investment 164.51
Other comprehensive income 15.97
BALANCE SHEET SUMMARY:
Loan 7.79
Investment at cost 902.85
Cash & Bank balance 664.25

Financial and economic scenario of the country.

Economic scenario and Industry was stable for most part of the year. However management
expense has been a cause of concern. Due to appropriate investment strategies the Company
was able to hold the business on stable growth path.

Risks and concerns

Decrease in life insurance fund has impacted significantly to our overall performance. Qur

growth in 2018 will most likely continue to impact in the coming year as well.

For Popular Life Insurance Company Ltd.

et

B M Yousuf Ali
Managing Director & CEO
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Report of the Audit Committee
For the year ended 31 December 2018

Audit Committee of Popular Life Insurance Co, Ltd,, a sub-committee of the Board of Directors, supports the Board in ensuring
that the financial statements reflect true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and in ensuring a good control
monitoring system within the business.

Composition of the Audit Committee:

The Audit Committee, appointed by and responsible to the Board of Directors, comprises 8 members and the Company
Secretary as the Secretary of the Audit Committee, out of them, one member is independent Non-Executive Director and the

Committee is chaired by him.

Role of the Audit Committee:

The Audit Committee's role flows directly from the Board and the Committee reports regularly to the Board on performance of

its activities. The Committee's main responsibilities consist of:

#® Reviewing the annual, half-yearly and quarterly financial statements and other financial results, and upon its satisfaction

of the review, recommend the same to the Board;

#® Reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of financial reporting process, internal control system, risk management,
auditing matters, and the Company's processes for monitoring compliance with laws and regulations and the Codes of

Conduct;

#® Monitoring and reviewing the arrangements for ensuring the objectivity and effectiveness of the external and internal

audit functions;

® Reviewing the effectiveness of internal audit function including performance, structure, adequacy of resources, and
compliance with professional standards, regulatory and financial reporting requirements, examining audit findings and

material weaknesses and monitoring implementation of audit action plans;
#® Recommending to the Board the appointment, reappointment or removal of the external auditors;
® Performing other activities as and when requested by the board of directors,

Meetings and Attendance:
During the year of 2018, a total of 12 (Twelve) meetings were held. The attendance of the members at these meetings is as
follows:
Name of Members Category Numberof | Meetings| Remarks
meetings held attended
Mr.Md. Khaled Mosharef Hossain Chairman Joining Date
{Independent Mon Executive Director) 4 4 27002018
Mr.Hasan Ahmed Member 12 1 -
Mr.Md. Motaher Hussain Member 12 12 -
Mr.Shamsul Arefin Khaled Member 12 6 -
Mr. Kabir Ahmed Member 12 1" -
Mr.Mohammed Amir Hossain Chowdhury | Member 12 12 -
Mr.Mohammed Zahirul Islam Chowdhury | Member 12 12 -
Mostofa Helal Kabir Company Secretary 12 12 -
Mr.A K M Aminul Mannan Chairman Resign Date
(Independent Mon Executive Director) 12 8 27.08.2018
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Major activities of the Audit Committee carried out during the year:

® Reviewed the quarterly, half yearly, two interim review for the interim cash dividend and annual financial statements for

the year ended 31 December 2018 along with receiving the statutory audit report and raising necessary questions on
statutory auditors in case of doubts;

Approved the internal audit plan for 2018, monitored progress and effected revisions when necessary;

Discussed internal audit reports and findings in detail with members of the management and monitored the status of
implementation of audit action plans and provided guidance to ensure timely completion of action plans;

® The committee reviewed the effectiveness of the internal financial controls, procedures and external audit report.
® Considered and made recommendation to the Board on the appointment and remuneration of external auditors;

@ The Chief Financlal Officer reported on the financial performance of the company and on financial and accounting
matters;

® Reviewed and received report on the matters as per requirement from the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange
Commission (BSEC). The above matters are significant recommendations for continuous improvement and therefore
duly noted.

The committee is of the opinion that adequate controls and procedures are in place to provide reasonable assurance that the
company's assets are safeguarded and that the financial position of the company is adequately managed.

On behalf of the Audit Committee

el

Md. Khaled Mosharef Hossain
Chairman
Audit Committes

Dated: May 18,2019
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NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (NRC)

In compliance with Notification No. BSEC/ACMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 and dated June 3, 2018 issued by the
Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission on Corporate Governance Code (the "BSEC Notification”), Popular
Life Insurance Company Ltd. (the *Company™) established a Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) on
Septemiber X7, 2018,

The NRC is a sub-committee of the Boand of Directors. The NRC is responsible to the Board and they assist the
Board of Directors in ensuring that assist the Board in formulation of the nomination criteria or policy for
determining qualifications, positive attributes, experiences and independence of directors and top level executive
a5 well as a policy for formal process of considering remuneration of directors, top level executive,

COMPOSITION OF THE NRC:

In accordance with the requirements of the BSEC Matification, the NRC of the Company as appointed by the Board
of Directors comprises of 3 (three) non-executive directors as members including two (2} Independent directors,
Following are the members of the NRC:

MName Designation
Malla Galarm Mohammad Chalrman
Hasan Ahmed Member
Md. Motaher Hussain Nember

MEETING OF MRC:

According to the requirement of BSEC Motification, the NRC is requined 1o sit for at least one (01) meeting in a year.
NRC may hold special meeting as and when required, The NRC formally met for the first time on October 28, 2018
after constitution of the NRC on September 27, 2018

The NRC of the Company ensured! observed the following activities:

& Adopted the NRC Policy and Terms of Reference as approved by the Board of Directors of the Company.

& Recommended the Code of Conduct for the Chairpersan of the Board, other Board members and Chief
Executive Officer pursuant to requirements of clause 17} of the BSEC Notification.

® Formulating and approving a plan for 2019 for fulling requirements and evaluations specified in Clause
&{5)(b) of the BSEC Notification,

HOMINATION AND REMUMNERATHON POLICY:
Thee policy of the NRC is enclosed to this Report as Enclosure A

Thie NRC expresses their sincere thanks to the members of the Board of Directors, management of the Company
for their outstanding support and co-operation.

rroita Golow (MLEAammad

Molla Golam Mohammad
Chairman of the Momination and Remunertion Committes
Dated:
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POLICY
NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

1. PURPOSE:

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) is a subcommittee of the Board of Directors (the
"Board") of Popular Life Insurance Company Limited (the "Company”).

® The purpose of this policy is to specify the authority delegated to the NRC by the Board of the Company

and to set out the role, responsibilities, membership and operation of the NRC in terms of the Corporate
Governance Code notified by the Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission vide notification dated
June 3,2018 (the "CG code”).

® The NRC shall be independent and responsible or accountable to the Board and to the Shareholders of

the Company.

2. RESPONSIBILITY TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

a)
b)

c

The Company shall have NRC as a subcommittee of the Board;

The NRC shall assist the Board in formulation of the nomination criteria or policy for determining
qualifications, positive attributes, experiences and independence of directors and top level executive as
well as a policy for formal process of considering remuneration of directors, top level executive;

The Terms of Reference (ToR) of the NRC are in terms of the condition No. 6(5)(b) of the CG code.

3. CONSTITUTION OF THE NRC:

a)
b)
c
d)
e)

f}

The NRC shall comprise of at least three (3) members including an independent director;

All members of the NRC shall be non-executive directors;

Members of the NRC shall be nominated and appointed by the Board;

The Board shall have authority to remove and appoint any member of the NRC;

In case of death, resignation, disqualification, or removal of any member of the NRC or in any other cases
of vacancies, the Board shall fill the vacancy within 180 (one hundred eighty) days of occurring such
vacancy in the NRC;

The Chairperson of the NRC may appoint or co-opt any external expert and/or member(s) of staff to the
NRC as advisor who shall be non-voting member, if the Chairperson feels that advice or suggestion from
such external expert and/or member(s) of staff shall be required or valuable for the NRC;

The Company Secretary shall act as the secretary of the NRC;

The quorum of the NRC meeting shall not constitute without attendance of at least an independent
director;

Mo member of the NRC shall receive, either directly or indirectly, any remuneration for any advisory or
consultancy role or otherwise, other than Director's fees or honorarium from the Company.

4, CHAIRPERSON OF THE NRC :

a)

b)

c

The Board shall select one (1) member of the NRC to be Chairperson of the NRC, who shall be an
independent director;

In the absence of the Chairperson of the NRC, the remaining members may elect one of themselves as
Chairperson for that particular meeting, the reason of absence of the regular Chairperson shall be duly
recorded in the minutes;

The Chairperson of the NRC shall attend the Annual General Meeting (AGM) to answer the queries of the
shareholders:
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d) Provided that in absence of Chairperson of the NRC, any ather membser from the NRC shall be selected to

be present in the AGM for answering the shareholder's queries and reason for absence of the
Chairperson of the NRC shall be recorded in the minutes of the AGM.

5. MEETING OF THE NRC:

a)

The NRC shall conduct at least one meeting in a financial year;

b) The Chairperson of the NRC may convene any emergency meeting upon request by any member of the

NRC;

¢} The quorum of the meeting of the NRC shall be constituted in presence of either two members or two

third of the members of the NRC, whichever is higher, where presence of an independent director is must
as required under condition 6(2)(h) of the CG code;

d] The proceedings of each meeting of the NRC shall duly be recorded in the minutes and such minutes

shall be confirmed in the nect meeting of the NRC.

6. TERMS OF REFEREMCE :

a) MRC shall be independent and responsible or accountable to the Board and to the Shareholders;

b) NRC shall oversee, amang others, the following matters and make report with recommendation to the Board:

i

formulating the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director
and recommend a policy to the Board, refating to the remuneration of the directors, top level executive,
considering the following:

a, the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficlent to attract, retain and motivate
suitable directors to run the Company successfully;

b. the relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance
benchmarks; and

. remuneration to directors, top level executive involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay
reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company
and its goals;

ii. devising a policy on Board's diversity taking into consideration age, gender, experience, ethnicity,

.

educational background and nationality;

identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in top level
executive position in accordance with the criterla lald down, and recommend their appointment and
remnaval to the Board;

formulating the criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and the Board;

v, identifying the Company's needs for employees at different levels and determine their selection, transfer

or replacement and promotion criteria; and developing, recommending and reviewing annually the
Compary’s human resources and training polickes;

¢} The Company shall disclose the nomination and remuneration policy and the evaluation criteria and activities of
NRLC during the year at a glance in its annual report.

Solla

o tom L e ammeadd

Molla Golam Mohammad
Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Dated:
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPANY CEO & CFO

To

The Board of Directors

Popular Life Insurance Company Limited
Head Office ; 36, Dilkusha C/A
Dhaka-1000.

Subject : Declaration on Financial Statements for the year ended on December 31,2018.

Drear Sir's:
In compliance with the Condition MNo. 1(5)(00v), of the Corporate Governance Code as issued by the BSEC vide its
natification dated June 3, 2018, we do hereby declare that:

1} The Financial Statements of Popular Life Insurance Company Lid for the year ended on December 31, 2018
have been prepared in compliance with Intemational Accounting Standards (IAS) or International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS), as applicable in the Bangladesh and any departure there from has been adequately
disclosed;

2] The estimates and judgments related to the financial statements wene made on a prudent and reasonable basis,
in order for the financial statements 1o reveal a true and fair view:

3} The form and substance of transactions and the Company's state of affairs have been reasonably and falrly
presented in its financial statements;

4] To ensure above, the Company has taken proper and adequate care in installing a system of intermal control
and maintenance of accounting records;

3} Owr internal auditors have conducted periodic audits to provide reasonable assurance that the established
policies and procedures of the Company were consistently followed; and

&) The management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements is
appropriate and there exists no material wncertainty related to events or conditions that may cast significant
dowbt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

In this regard, we also certify that:

(i) We have reviewsd the financial statements for the year ended on Decemnbser 31, 2018 and that to the best of our
knowledge and belief:

a) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain
statements that might be misleading;

b) these statements collectively present true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance with
existing accounting standards and applicable Laws.

(i) There are, to the best of knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year
which are fraudulent, illlegal or in violation of the code of conduct for the Company's Board of Directors or its
miembers,

Sincerely Yours,
Kazi Md. Fazlul Karim B M Yousuf Ali
Additional Managing Director & CFO Managing Director & CEOQ
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STATISTICS OF BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

In crore In crore
2018 2017 Difference Changes %

First Year Premium:
Individual Life 79.30 41.63 37.67 90.49
Janapriya Bima 61.78 30.20 31.58 104.58
Islami Bima (Takaful) 56.99 32.34 24.65 76.22
Al-Amin Bima 124.03 66.09 57.94 87.66
Islami DPS Bima 46,83 16.90 29.93 177.09
Popular DPS Bima 19.31 9.65 9.66 100.09
Al-Baraka Islami Bima 4546 27.10 18.36 67.74
Al-Baraka Islami DPS Bima 36.96 11.48 2548 221,94
Janapriya Akok Bima 1749 10.63 6.86 64.56
Al-Amin Akok Bima 45.00 20.57 2443 118.76
Islami DPS Khudra Akok 1243 4.28 8.15 190.37
Janapriya Khudra Akok 13.49 4.62 8.87 191.95

559.06 275.49 283.57 102,93
Renewal Premium
Individual Life 37.27 39.04 (1.77) (4.53)
Janapriya Bima 17.27 11.52 5.75 49,94
Islami Bima (Takaful) 24.78 2435 043 1.77
Al-Amin Bima 58.79 4343 15.36 35.36
Islami DPS Bima 16.19 12.26 3.93 32.06
Popular DPS Bima 9.05 7.69 1.36 17.62
Al-Barakah Islami Bima 19.29 19.50 (0.21) (1.10)
Al-Barakah Islami DPS Bima 14.74 13.54 1.20 8.90
Janapriya Akok Bima 9.56 8.51 1.05 12.38
Al-Amin Akok Bima 23.31 28.86 (5.55) (19.22)
Islami DPS Khudra Akok 7.66 8.90 (1.24) (13.94)
Janapriya Khudra Akok 6.89 7.95 (1.06) (13.32)

244.81 225.55 19.26 8.54

803.87 501.05 302.82 60.44
Group Insurance Premium 0.11 0.12 (0.01) (8.33)
Life Insurance Fund 1,788.66 2,286.54 (497.88) (21.77)
Claim 922.09 £21.85 300.24 48.28
Mgt. Expense 506.05 247.45 258.60 104.51
Commission to Insurance Agents 237.10 8173 155.37 190.10
"Allowances & Commission (other than 103.38 36.45 66.93 183.62
Commission included in above)”
Administrative & other expenses 165.57 129.39 36.18 27.96
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STATEMENT OF RATIO ANALYSIS FOR 5 YEARS

Amount in '000 Taka
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PERFORMANCE IN LAST FIVE YEARS (INCLUDING THE YEAR 2018)

Particulars 2018
Tk

Gross Premium 8,039,765815

Life Fund 17,886,638,144
Claims 9,220.881,523
Total Assets 19,700,626,097

Total Current Assets 6,352,129,770
Total Current Liability 672,635,229
Fixed Assets 39,683,483

Investment 13,308,812,844

Meruall Fiaget 01T | Popuier LM Intis

2017
Tk
2,011,622,727

22,865,445,587

6,218,462,032

23,332,856,845

4497 697,775

1.097100,518

24,880,490

20,810,278,580

6,005,742,870

6,701,142,996

25,052,960,729 28,206,146,265

8,053,699.840 6,044,895,560

26,723,320,934 29,257,154.436

4,501,169.624 4,243,389,504

765,407 240

34,235,900

414,775,230

49775915

22,187,915,410 24,895,751,206
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6,623,172,050
28,017,353,382
2,510,151,085
28,809,791,387
4,309,373,162
328,857,814
48,572,176

24,451,846,049



Amount in Taka Crore

GRAPHICAL REPRESENTATION
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GRAPHICAL REPRESENTATION

60057

501.16

Premium Income for the last 5 years
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ANALYSIS OF UTILIZATION OF INCOME
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G. KIBRIA & CO. g

Chartered Accountants An ssscciation of kgally independent accounting fires wordwide

Sadharan Bima Sadan (5th Floor), 24-25, Dilkusha Commercial Area, Dhaka -1000
Phone : 880-2-9568071, 880-2-9570717, BB0-2-9575324, Fax : 880-2-9553630,
E-mail : kibria03 @ hotmail.com, gkibria @ gkibriaandco.com, Web: gkibriaandco.com

Independent Auditors' Report to the Shareholders of
Popular Life Insurance Company Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial staterments of Popular Life Insurance Company
Limited (the Company) and its subsidiaries as well as the separate financial statements of Popular Life Insurance
Company Limited , which comprise the Consolidated and separate Balance Sheets as at 31 December 2018,
and the Consolidated Life Revenue and Profit and Loss and Other Compressive Income Account and separate
Life Revenue Account, Consolidated and separate Statements of Changes in Equity and Consolidated and
separate Statements of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section

of our report, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the company and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2018, and its financial performance and
its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs),
the Companies Act 1994, the Insurance Act 2010, in some applicable cases, the Insurance Act 1938, the
Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and other applicable laws and regulations.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

As disclosed in the Note 17, the Company has recorded Sundry Debtors worth BDT 91,332,160. These
represent funds that were embezzled from the Company and which the Company is now in the process of
recovering through legal proceedings. Since legal proceedings are currently ongoing, there is a possibility of an
inflow of economic benefits into the Company which represents a contingent asset and should not be recorded
but rather written off.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Intemational Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial siatements in Bangladesh, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.
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Risk

Our response to the risk

Premium Income

Met premium comprises the gross premium received
including group insurance less reinsurance premium
during the accounting period.

Given the important nature, connections to other items
to the financial statements and sensitivity of the item we
believe this area pose high level of risk.

With respect to Premium income in respect of various
types of life insurance we carried out the following
procedures:

® Checked the design and operating effectiveness of
key controls around premium income recognition
process.

@ Carried out analytical procedures and recalculated
premium income for the period on sample basis.

® Carried out cut-off testing (set by regulatory authority)
to ensure unearned premium income has not been
included in the premium income.

@& On a sample basis reviewed policy to ensure
appropriate policy stamp was affixed to the contract
and the same has been reflected in the premium
register,

# Ensured on a sample basis that the premium income
was being deposited in the designated bank accounts.

@# For a sample of insurance contracts tested to see if
appropriate level of reinsurance was done and whether
that reinsurance premium was properly calculated and
it has been deducted from the gross premium.

@ Finally assessed the appropriateness and presentation
of disclosures against relevant accounting standards,
Insurance Act 1938 (as amended in 2010), Insurance
Rules 1958 and other applicable rules and regulations
and regulatory guidelines.

See note no 27 to the financial statements

Estimated liabllity in respect of outstanding claims whether due or intimated and

claim payments

These accounts represent the claim due or intimated
from the insured and involve significant management
judgment and risk of understatement.

The claim payments to the policyholders in the various
nature like survival benefit, paid up, surrender, maturity,
death eic. are very important in respect of the company
whether these have been paid on time.

In extreme scenario these items may have reputational
threat and going concem implications for the company.

We tested the design and operating effectiveness of
controls around the due and intimated claim recording
process.

We also checked the claims paid by the company on
test basis using the software, manual documents
available with the company and also contacted with the
clients through telephone or physically.

We additionally carried out the following substantive
testing around this item:

@® Obtained the claim register and tested for
completeness of claims recorded in the register on
a sample basis.

@® Obtained a sample of claimed policy copy and cross
check it with claim also check the duration of claim
payment complied with relevant law of insurance.
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@ Obtained and discussed with management about
their basis for estimation and challenged their
assumptions where appropriate.

® Reviewed the claim committee meeting minutes
regarding decision of pending claims.

@ Tested a sample of claims payment with intimation
letters, bank statements, claim payment register and
general ledger.

@ Finally assessed the appropriateness and presentation
of disclosures against relevant accounting standards,
Insurance Act 1938 (as amended in 2010), Insurance
Rules, 1958 and other applicable rules and
regulations and regulatory guidelines.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements and
Internal Controls

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
IFRSs, the Companies Act 1994, the Insurance Act 1938 (as amended in 2010), the Securities and Exchange Rules
1987 and other applicable laws and regulations and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the 2018 Annual Report. The Annual Report comprises of the Director's Report,
Corporate Governance Compliance Report and Management Discussion and Analysis. The Annual Report is

expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified
above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial staterments or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
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with 1SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

@ |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

@ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances.

@ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

@ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concemn. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a going concem.

@ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought fo bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the maiters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a maiter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication,

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In accordance with the Companies Act 1984, the Insurance Act 1938 (as amended in 2010), the Securities and
Exchange Rules 1987 and relevant notifications issues by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission, we

also report that:

a) We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purpose of our audit and made due verification thereof;
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b} In our opinion, propor baoks of accounts, reconds and other statubory books as nequined by kaw have been
kapt by the Company so far as it appearad from our examinations of thosa books and proper retums
adequate for the purpose of our audit have been received from branches not visited by us;

€) The financial statements of subsidiary of the Company, Popular Life Securities Limited has been audited by
Ahmed Mashuque & Co., Chanered Accountants and ungualified opinion was expressed on the financial
statements and thoso statements have been propary reflected in the consolidaled and separato financial
statemants of the Compary.

d) As par section 62{2) of the Insurance Act 1533 (amended in 2010), in our opinion o the best of our
information and explanation given 10 us all expenses of management wherever incummed and whether
incurred directly or indiroctly, in respect of insurance business of the company transacted in Bangladesh
during the year under repodt have been duly debited o the Revenue Accounts of the Company;

@) Tha information and cxplanations roquired by us have boon reconod and found salsiactony;

f) As per regulation 11 of par 1 of the third schedule of the Insurance Act 1938 (amended in 2010), in our
opinion o the best of our information and as shown by ils books, the company during the year under reporn
has ol paid any persons afy commitssion in any lonm outside Bangladash in respect of arry its business re-
imgured abroad;

gl The Balance Sheet, Life Revenue Accounts and Statement of Changes in Equity and Staternant of Cash
Flows of the Company dealt with by the report are in agreament with the books of account and retums;

h) The expenditure was incurred fior the purpose of the Company’s business; and

i) The company has complied with relevant laws and regulations peraining 1o resanes.

& ﬁ%’jo
Dated, 18052018 G. Kibria & Co.

Dihaka Chanered Accountants
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Balance Sheet
as at 31st December, 2018

2018 2017
CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES
SHAREHOLDERS' CAPITAL 3.00
Authorised 5,000,000,000 5,000,000,000
50,00,00,000 Ordinary Shares of Tk.10 each
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up 604,283,580 604,283,580
60,428,358 Ordinary Shares of Tk. 10 each
fully paid-up
Revaluation Surplus on Investment in DSE Membership 4.00 31,949,061 31,949,061
Reserve for Fair Value of Share 505,120,083 734,078,099
Life Insurance Fund 5.00 17,871,494,506 22,866,743,790
Estimated Liabilities in Respect of Outstanding Claims,
Whether Due or Intimated 6.00 2,055,021 3,662,239
Amount due to other Persons or Bodies Carrying on
Insurance Business 7.00 33,360,941 33,819,920
Sundry Creditors 8.00 83,569,175 676,752,763
Provision For Taxation 9.00 457 416,231 324,772,586
Deferred Tax Provision 10.00 33,231,763 34,193,134
Premium Deposits 11.00 23,160,840 20,589,789

Total 19,645,641,201 25,330,844,961

The accounting policies & other notes from 1to 35 form an integral part of the financial statements.

= Lesto AN A o %ﬁéﬁ Sl

B M Yousuf Ali Shamsul Arefin Khaled her Hussain Hasan Ahmed
Managing Director & CEQ Director Vice Chairman Chairman
As per report of date annexed
G. KIBRIA & CO.
Chartered Accountants.
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' 2018 2017 '
= ~ PARTICULARS NOTES TAKA TAKA
PROPERTY AND ASSETS
LOAN 12.00 77,934,823 72,726,288
On Insurer's Policies within their Surrender Value 1200 2270988 | 2.720,788 |
Home Loan 1202 75,663,835 | | 70,005,500 |
INVESTMENT (AT CO5T) 13.00 9,117,843,426 16,229,807.978
Statutory Deposit with Bangladesh Bank & Jamuna DR | ==
Bank LTD. (NIB & Treasury Bond) 13.01 15,000,000 15,000,000
Treasury Bond 13.02 1,7 74,100,000 9,324,100,000
Shares & Debentures 13.03 3,455497 289 3,207,135117 |
House Property (At Cost less depreciation) 13.04 3,589,973,751 3.614,324,835 |
Investment in Subsidiary Company 13.05 215,034,575 1,010,215 |
VALUE OF TREC 14,00 68,237811 | 68237811
INTEREST, DIVIDEND AND RENTS ACCRUING BUT
NOT DUE 15.00 1,112,124,703 1351215773
ADVANCE, DEPOSITS & PRE PAYMENTS 16.00 693,581,842 465,632,998
SUNDRY DEBTORS 17.00 91,332,160 87,046,712
HIRE PURCHASE LOAN 994, 582 904,582
OUTSTANDING PREMIUM 18.00 1,978,327,133 1,550,575,758
CASH AND BANK BALANCES 6,510,073,720  5,525,320,361
On Fixed Deposit with Banks 19.00 4,280,305,718 | 4,581,480,817 |
On STD Account with Banks 20,00 1,421,795,380 678,463,652
On Current Account with Banks 21.00 632,602,031 i 65,970,057
Cash in Hand 2200 49,648,496 35,460,466 |
Branch Petty Cash 23,00 8l 10734711
Brokerage House 125722095 | 153,210,658
OTHER ACCOUNTS 63,428,812 47,524,511
Fixed Assets (At Cost Less Depreciation) 1400 [ 39,584,242 | 24,880,490 |
Stamps, Printing and Stationery in Hand 25.00 23,844,570 | 22644021
THe aeroRhiig pOUAL A ciher notes oo i 35 ot Total 19,645,641,201  25,330,844,961
an integral part of the financial statements.

1 i1
o LotsA ML~ .@/fé& 2 O ]
BM Yousuf Ali Shamsul Arefin Khaled Md. her Hussain Hasan Ahmed
Managing Dirextor & CED Director Vice Chairman Chairmman
A per Pt ol date anned

GQ S
G. KIBRIA & CO. 1)
Chararad Accountants.
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Life Revenue Account
for the year ended 31st December, 2018

2018 2017
PARTICULARS | | NOTES | TAKA TAKA

BALANCE OF FUND AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 22,866,743,790 25,053,046,282
Excess Provision Written Back 26.00 3,78918 1,414,800
PREMIUM LESS RE-INSURAMCE: 27.00
First Year Premium 5,590,631,673 2,754,899,892
Individual Life 793,021,316 416,259,159
Janapriya Bima 617,831,278 302,024,518
Islami Bima (Takaful) 569,898,004 323,365,938
Al-Amin Bima 1,240,266,254 660,924,780
Islami DPS Bima 468,282,772 168,990,665
Popular DPS Bima 193,089,985 96,535,144
Al-Baraka Islami Bima 454,588,728 271,050,704
Al-Baraka Islami DPS Bima 369,585,268 114,824,832
Janapriya Akok Bima 174,926,717 106,265,576
Al-Amin Akok Bima 449,982,469 205,727,394
Islami DPS Khudra Akok 124,276,805 42,780,537
Janapriya Khudra Akok 134,882,077 46,150,645
Renewal Premium 2,448,059,417 2,155,498,382
Individual Life 372,719,276 390,443,373
Janapriya Bima 172,728,737 115,214,854
Islami Bima (Takaful) 247,817,800 243472976
Al-Amin Bima 587,871,533 434,283,691
Islami DPS Bima 161,909,256 122,581,393
Popular DPS Bima 90,453,012 76,875,767
Al-Baraka Islarmi Bima 192,863,241 194,950,689
Al-Baraka Islami DPS Bima 147,445,407 135416,977
Janapriya Akok Bima 95,634,560 85,149,316
Al-Amin Akok Bima 233,117,647 288,601,465
Islami DPS Khudra Akok 76,591,258 BB,977,528
Janapriya Khudra Akok 68,007,600 79,530,353

8,038,691,090 5,010,398,274
Group Insurance Premium 1,074,725 1,224,453
Gross Premium 8,039,765,815 5,011,622,727
Less:Re-Insurance Premium 6,858,268 8,867,899
Net Premium 8,032,907,547 5,002,754,828
INTEREST, DIVIDENDS AND RENTS 28.00 1,484,128,129 1,821,166,689
OTHERS INCOME 29.00 139,028,683 83,291,731
PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENT 30.00 - -

Total 32,523,187,067 31,961,674,330

First Year Premium, where the Maximum Premium Paying Period is :
Single 74,534,023 259,125,810
Five Years - -
Six Years - -
Seven Years - -
Eight Years - 60,225,161
Mine Years - 1,366,887
Ten Years 732,620,166 162,124,161
Eleven Years - 4,022,169
Twelve Years or Over (Including throughout Life) 4,783 477,484 2,268,035,704

5,590,631,673 2,754,899,892
The accounting policies & other notes from 1to 35 form an integral part of the financial statements.

Ji—gl
a—T" Lrsts b lAo - % As per report of date annexed
B M Yousuf All Shamsul Arafin Khaled Md. Métahar Hussain
Marsaging Director & CEQ Drector Vice Chairman C‘ I"}J"
G. KIBRIA & CO.
Charered Apcunlanis
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